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PROCEEDINGS RESUME ON 6 JULY 2020 

CHAIRPERSON:  Good morning Mr Notshe,  good morning 

everybody.   You wi l l  have to switch on your microphone.  I  

have been told that  there are chal lenges wi th  the l ight  or 

now hopeful ly i t  is going to be sorted out  in a matter of  

minutes but  I  th ink I  can – I  can read what is in  f ront  of  me 

but  the l ight ing is  qui te bad where you are Mr Notshe.   Just  

speak to  Mr St imela behind you Mr Notshe to f ind out  what – 

what is the latest .    

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Chai r  I  am in formed that  i t  –  i t  w i l l  take 10 

about  ten to  f i f teen minutes.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Ten to  f i f teen minutes.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Yes.   But  for  me the l ight ing is  f ine I  can 

read and… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Ja.   I  am not  shaking about .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   I  th ink there is  a  fu r ther  message 

coming to  you.   Ja.    

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Chai rperson we are – I  am to ld that  i f  

you can read I  can and the wi tness can read the cameras 20 

wi l l  be able to  ro l l  unt i l  tea t ime then they can sor t  i t  out .   

So they say we can proceed i f  the par t ic ipants. . .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Par t i c ipants can read.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Okay no that  i s  f ine so i t  w i l l  not  



06 JULY 2020 – DAY 230 
 

Page 4 of 90 
 

a ffect  your  – th is  l ightn ing.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   I t  seems as i f  i t  w i l l  not .   They say the  

camera wi l l  ro l l .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Ja.   Okay a l r ight .   Okay le t  us  star t .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Chai rperson before we get  to  the – the 

wi tness.   The – today was scheduled for  two wi tnesses.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Mr – i t  was scheduled two wi tness Mr 

Cedr ic  Fro l i ck and the wi tness who wi l l  test i fy  Mr  Char l  Le 

Roux.   Unhappi ly  Mr Fro l i ck physica l l y  ind isposed as he is  10 

unable to  at tend which would leave can then be –  h is  

test imony be postponed [00:03:22]  and then we arrange 

another  date for  h is  test imony.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Today and th is  week we were going 

to  – I  was going to  hear  ev idence for  a t  least  I  th ink  two or  

three days re la t ing to  Bosasa.   Mr Cedr ic  Fro l ick had 

appl ied for  Leave to Adduce to g ive ev idence and to deal  

wi th  the  a l legat ions made against  h im by Mr Agr izz i  in  

re la t ion to  Bosasa and –  and the  ar rangements had been 

that  he would come today.   But  as  Mr Notshe ind ica tes he is  20 

apparent ly  unwel l  and we wi l l  have to  adjourn the hear ing of  

h is  ev idence to a  date to  be determined the Chai rperson in  

due course.   So the hear ing of  Mr Fro l i ck ’s  ev idence is  

therefore adjourned.   But  the ev idence that  we – I  wi l l  hear  

f rom another  wi tness a lso re la tes to  Bosasa.   Do you want  



06 JULY 2020 – DAY 230 
 

Page 5 of 90 
 

to  take i t  f rom there Mr Notshe just  to  g ive the contex t? 

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Chai rperson today the wi tness who is  

scheduled to  test i fy  is  Mr Char l  Le Roux.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   The genesis  of  h is  ev idence is  the 

ev idence of  Mr Agr izz i .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   And in  the statement  g iven by Mr Agr izz i  

paragraph 22 of  Mr Agr izz i ’s  s tatement .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  10 

ADV NOTSHE SC:   He refers to  repai rs  … 

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Maybe you can – i f  you refer  to  a 

paragraph you can ind icate what  that  s tatement  of  Agr izz i  is  

–  what  date i t  was g iven because he gave a few.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   A ff idavi ts  just  for  the record so that  

whoever reads the t ranscr ip ts  knows how to ident i f y  the one 

that  you are refer r ing.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Yes Mr Chai rperson.   Chai rperson i t  i s  

the – the statement  of  Mr Agr izz i  –  I  just  want  to  get  i t  20 

there.   I t  is  AA – i t  is  Exhib i t  AA004 th is  is  the f i rs t  

s ta tement  that  he  gave.  

CHAIRPERSON:   What  i s  the date? 

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Excuse me Cha i rperson I  just… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Or  i s  that  the Exh ib i t  number?  
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ADV NOTSHE SC:   That  is  the Exhib i t  number.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  AA? 

ADV NOTSHE SC:   I t  is  AA – i t  is  AA and then i t  s tar ts  at  

AA01.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   But  the statement  is  g iven the  number 

AA – Exhib i t  AA.  

CHAIRPERSON:   AA okay.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Yes.   But  then what  wi l l  he lp the  AA we 

wi l l  have – because I  can then take the Chai rperson to the  10 

re levant  paragraph.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh,  you do not  have the last  page of  the 

aff idavi t?  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Let  me get  to  the last  page of  the 

aff idavi t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja because that  wi l l  he lp ind icate when he 

deposed to the af f idavi t .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Yes.   The aff idavi t  Chai rperson is  dated 

the – the 15 January 2019.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Yes then you can go to  the 20 

paragraph that  you sa id.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Then to paragraphs.  

CHAIRPERSON:   A t  least  the reader of  the t ranscr ip t  wi l l  be 

able to… 

ADV NOTSHE SC:   To fo l low yes.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   To – to  ident i fy  which aff idavi t  o f  Mr 

Agr izz i .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   We are ta lk ing about .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Yes.   I t  is  – the re levant  par t  o f  Mr  

Agr izz i ’s  s tatement  is  paragraph 22 and page AA036 of  the  

– of  the – of  the  Exhib i t .   I t  is  the genesis i f  they  – there  

Chai rperson you – one wi l l  see that  i t  is  –  i t  is  g iven a  

speci f ic  heading  of  Nomvula Mokonyane and in  that  

paragraph he then deals wi th  the [ ind is t inct ]  th ings,  the 10 

repai rs  that  were done at  the house of  Ms Mokonyane – Ms 

Mokonyane.   And thereaf ter  the  – the – Mr Richard Le Roux 

– Mr Richard Le Roux’s s tatement  a lso refers to  the – le t  

me just  take you to  i t .   I t  is  T3 the ev idence – the statement 

of  Richard Le Roux where in he a lso refers to  the repai rs  

that  were done at  the house of  Ms Mokonyane.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Where – where is  – where  are the  

other  – where is  Mr Agr izz i ’s  s tatement  and everyth ing?  I  

had asked that  I  should have i t  w i th  me.   

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Mr Chai rperson i t  is  pr in ted – i t  has  20 

been – there was a problem wi th the off ice pr in ters.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh okay.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   But  for tunate ly,  we found a pr in te r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   I t  is  be ing pr in ted as – as we speak.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Oh okay.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   What  we have done we have pr in ted 

three statements.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   There is  the statement  – the  sta tement  I  

have refer red to .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Then there is  a  supplementary  

statement  af ter  he test i f ied.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  10 

ADV NOTSHE SC:   There were issues that  you ra ised and… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   That  were ra ised dur ing the hear ing.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   He made a supplementary statement .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   And a lso,  there  was a  statement  – and a 

response to Ms Mokonyane’s s tatement .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Where in he g ives you those.   Those wi l l  20 

be presented shor t ly.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes okay inc lud ing Ms Mokonyane’s 

aff idavi t?  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Inc lud ing Ms Mokonyane’s aff idavi t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja okay.  
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ADV NOTSHE SC:   And then Chai r  th is  morn ing as  a resul t  

–  yesterday arrangement  wi l l  be – legal  representat ion of  

Ms Mokonyane we v is i ted  her  home and – and the – the 

only purpose for  th is  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh,  maybe before  we get  there le t  me just  

g ive the context  as I  recal l  i t  f rom the evidence and 

aff idavi t s  of  Mr Agr izz i  and the aff idavi t  o f  Ms Mokonyane.   

Mr Agr izz i  gave evidence last  year  impl icat ing a number of  

people inc lud ing some pol i t ic ians and among other  th ings 

he  test i f ied  that  whi le  he was at  Bosasa there  were a 10 

number of  people  who were paid –  who were g iven month ly  

payments by Bosasa and he sa id Ms Nomvula Mokonyane 

was one of  them.   And a lso,  ev idence was led by  h im as 

wel l  as Mr Richard Le Roux to  the effect  that  there was a 

pro ject  wi th in  Bosasa I  cannot  remember what  they ca l led i t  

in  terms of  which Bosasa insta l led CCTV cameras and other  

secur i t y  equipment  at  the homes o f  cer ta in  people.   And he 

ment ioned Ms Mokonyane’s home as one of  the –  they –  

that  i s  Mr Agr izz i  and Mr Richard Le Roux I  th ink ment ioned 

Ms Mokonyane’s  home as one of  the homes of  cer ta in  20 

people in  which Bosasa ins ta l led cer ta in  secur i t y  

equipment .   And Mr Agr izz i  a lso gave evidence to the effect  

that  he v is i ted Ms Mokonyane’s res idence.   I t  may be that  

he sa id d i f ferent  res idences i f  he  went  to  both  res idences 

that  the off i c ia l  res idence and the  personal  res idence and 
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he sa id on one occasion he went  to  Ms Mokonyane ’s  

res idence together  wi th  Mr Gavin Watson and they met  wi th  

Ms Mokonyane and he sa id – I  th ink he sa id i t  was on that  

occasion that  Mr Watson had brought  money for  Mr  – or  Ms 

Mokonyane which was e i ther  –  i t  was g iven to  Ms 

Mokonyane or  was le f t  on the chai r  in  the house.   I  cannot  

remember  the deta i ls .   And there was a lso ev idence by Mr 

Agr izz i  that  I  th ink there were del i ver ies that  were sent  to  

Ms Mokonyane f rom Bosasa.  Of  course,  there  i s  on  a 

number of  occasions.   The commission asked Ms 10 

Mokonyane to depose to an aff idavi t  and deal  wi th  these 

a l legat ions and she deal t  –  she co-operated and she 

submi t ted an aff idavi t  in  which she g ives her  s ide of  the 

sto ry.   My recol lect ion is  that  she denied that  Bosasa had –  

was paying her  –  or  had paid her  any money as a l leged by 

Mr Agr izz i  and he – she a lso sa id that  Mr Agr izz i  had never  

been to her  house i f  I  recal l  correct ly.   And the commission 

then cont inued to make invest igat ions ar is ing out  o f  Ms 

Mokonyane’s den ia l .   And the ev idence that  wi l l  be led 

today by Mr Char l  Le Roux re lates to  the  fur ther  20 

invest igat ion conducted by the commission.   And Mr Notshe 

wi l l  a lso ta lk  about  a v is i t  to  Mr  Mokonyane’s res idence 

yesterday where  her  lawyers were present .   And as I  

understand the posi t ion  there was much co-operat ion f rom 

Ms Mokonyane and her  lawyers in  regard  to  the 
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invest igat ion and the i r  v is i t  to  her  home yesterday.   Mr 

Notshe.   I  thought  le t  me just  put  that  mysel f .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Because you – you are new in  the  

commission.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And I  have been around so I  can 

remember some of  these th ings because the aff idavi ts  are  

not  here yet .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Yes thank you –  thank you Chai r.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja i t  is  just  important  so that  everybody 

who l i s tens to  the  ev idence that  i s  led today can remember  

the context .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   What  i s  th is  ev idence about .   Okay.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Wel l  thank you Chai r  the – as fa i r  as 

recal led the pro ject  regard ing Ms Mokonyane and was 

ca l led Pro ject  B louberg.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes okay.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   I  th ink i t  is  because of  the house is  in  20 

B louberg.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   And Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   There was another  – there was –  I  th ink  

there was a genera l  name for  the pro ject  o f  insta l l ing  
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secur i t y  equipment  at  the res idences of  d i f fe rent  people but  

i t  may be that  they ca l led i t  accord ing to  each person.   L ike 

Pro ject  B louberg  or  Pro ject  PRASA or  Pro ject  someth ing 

e lse.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Chai r  the way I  understand Mr Agr izz i ’s  

ev idence.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   The whole i ssue of  repai rs  and a l l  that  

genera l ly  was ca l led Pro ject  Shi f t ron.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  10 

ADV NOTSHE SC:   And then by then there was sub-pro jects  

under i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Of  d i f fe rent  res idences.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Okay.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   And then the one in  B louberg.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV NOTSHE SC :     I t  was ca l led Pro ject  B louberg.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh – B louberg okay.   No that  is  f ine.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Yes.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Thank you Cha i r  and thank you for  the  

assis tance you gave me.   Chai r  the  – the before the wi tness 

does test i fy ing we – yesterday and by agreement  between 

us or  the commission and the legal  representat i ves of  Ms 
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Mokonyane we met  at  Ms Mokonyane’s house and the 

purpose was to  conf i rm the features  that  were ident i f ied by  

a [ ind is t inct ]  by Mr Le Roux in  h is  s tatement  that  he saw 

when he went  to  do some repai rs  a t  Ms Mokonyane’s  house.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh,  actual ly  ra ther  than to  conf i rm to see 

whether  they are there.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   To see whether  that  they are there.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   Yes.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   And then Chai r  a t  the end of  the 

inspect ion we then sat  down and recorded what  had been – 10 

what  we had seen.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   And pointed out  by Mr Char l  Le Roux.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.   Hm.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   And which wi l l  g ive and by agreement  

between the par t ies.  

CHAIRPERSON:   H.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   I  beg leave to  read th is  in to the record.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes okay.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   And Chai r  understand i t  is  a lso  in  your  20 

bundle Exhib i t  T13 and i t  is  on page … 

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am sorry – I  am sor ry just  repeat  that  I  

missed that .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   And th is  s tatement  – th is  memorandum 

of  agreement  i t  should be in  the Chai r ’s  bundle as wel l  – in  
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the commission bundle Exhib i t  13 –  T13.  

CHAIRPERSON:   T13.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   The – okay maybe what  we wi l l  do  

I  know that  I  have confused some of  the members of  the 

legal  team.   Shal l  we ca l l  th is  Bundle someth ing tha t  is  the  

lever  arch and Mr  Char l  Le Roux’s s tatement  Exhib i t  13 and 

i ts  annexures.   Is  that  f ine i f  we do i t  that  way? 

ADV NOTSHE SC:   The – what  we have Chai r  i s  –  is  i t  in  

Exhib i t  R13? 10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes no what  I  am saying is ,  shal l  we say 

Exhib i t  T13 is  Mr Char l  Le Roux’s a ff idavi t .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Yes 

CHAIRPERSON:   And annexures but  the box we cal l  i t  

bundles we g ive  i t  a  bundle number or  bundle a le t ter  

bundle or  someth ing.   So that  i t  i s  c lear  that  the exhib i t  i s  

not  the box.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Oh I  see.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I t  is  the aff idavi t  that  i s  the Exhib i t .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Chai r  can I  just  confer  wi th  my 20 

at torney? 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   Hm.   Or a l te rnat ive… 

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Chai rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   I t  –  I  am advised that  we wi l l  a f ter  I  
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have handed up the exhib i t  –  I  mean the – formal ly  handed 

up to  you th is  exh ib i t  13 I  am referr ing to  we wi l l  then g ive i t  

a  bundle number which wi l l  be Bundle A.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   No that  is  f ine.   And i f  –  i f  you know 

there are d i f feren t  bundles that  are being – that  have been 

used.   I  know tha t  cer ta in ly  under the PRASA work s t ream I  

th ink they have fo l lowing th rough w i th  my in ference handing 

up these lever  a rch f i les as bund le B or  bundle whatever  

and then the aff idavi t s  ins ide wou ld be Exhib i t  th is ,  Exhib i t  

that  and Exhib i t  that .   But  i f  what  is  most  important  for  now 10 

is  the Exhib i t  for  the – for  the aff idavi t .  The bundle number 

or  bundle le t te r,  Bundle A or  whatever  that  is  for 

convenience and that  can be – can be at tended to ever  

la te r.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   That  does not  have to  go in to the record 

as such but  i t  is  convenient  i f  everybody knows that  you wi l l  

f ind Exhib i t  13 in  Bundle so and so.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   So and so I  understand,  I  understand.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  20 

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Chai rperson we wi l l  a t tend to  tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Okay a l r ight .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Before – before  we adjourn today I  – we 

wi l l  have at tended to i t  so that  i t  a lso goes to  the record.  

CHAIRPERSON:   To the record yes.  
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ADV NOTSHE SC:   As – and we wi l l  f ind bundle.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Ja.   Ja.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Chai r  before… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Before I… 

CHAIRPERSON:   So maybe le t  me – le t  me get  th is  out  o f  

the way.   The – you see I  see that  there is  a  state – there is  

an aff idavi t  a lso o f  Van B i l jon.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   So that  wi l l  have to  have a separate or  10 

exhib i t  number.   So the one that  wi l l  be T13 is  that  o f  Mr 

Char l  Le Roux.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   So – but  we – we can deal  wi th  tha t  i f  and 

when we come to i t .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   The one for  Van B i l jon.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Van B i l jon yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   So the aff idavi t  o f  Mr Char l  Le Roux –  

Char l  Jax Le Roux is  admi t ted and is  to  be marked Exhib i t  20 

T13,  13.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   As the Chai rperson p leases.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Together  wi th  h is  annexures.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   As the Chai rperson p leases.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  
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ADV NOTSHE SC:   Chai r  wi th  you leave and your  guidance 

the – the memorandum or  the  minute of  yes terday’s  

inspect ion that  wi l l  form par t  o f  the  aff idavi t  o f  Mr Le Roux.   

Should we have – should we have a separate  exhib i t  

number?  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes i t  should have a separate  exhib i t  

number but  maybe the best  t ime to  hand up might  be at  the  

end of  h is  ev idence.   I  do not  know what  you th ink about  

that?  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Chai rperson that  –  that  is  a lso f ine.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ys.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Because… 

CHAIRPERSON:   So – so you wi l l… 

ADV NOTSHE SC:   He would have test i f ied.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   He wi l l  have test i f ied and then you 

say here is  an agreement  that  was s igned af ter  the v is i t  –  at  

the end of  the v is i t .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   And then Chai r  can I  then move – and 20 

then a lso the – what  I  had – but  we wi l l  deal  –  we can deal  

wi th  i t  a f ter  he  has test i f ied.   The – because he was 

employed by Mr Van B i l jon so I  was p lanning but  we can do 

i t  the other  way around.   I  was p lanning f i rs t  to  deal  wi th  

the – sorry – sor ry Chai r.   I  was p lanning to  deal  wi th  the  
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ev idence and read in to the record  the aff idavi t  o f  Mr Van 

B i l jon but  Chai r  i t  does not  mat te r.   Let  the wi tness test i fy  

and then… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   And then we wi l l  deal  wi th  the other  

issues thereaf te r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   The – i t  depends on what  the – what  

sequence you – you want .   I  do not  mind i f  you re fer  to  –  

wel l  to  the aff idavi t  o f  Mr Van B i l jon.   I t  does seem to me 

that  to  the extent  that  agreement  who has been reached on 10 

th ings that  were seen in  the – in  Ms Mokonyane’s res idence 

i t  may be that  her  aff idavi t  o r  h is  aff idavi t  –  Mr Van B i l jon ’s  

wi l l  not  be chal lenged.   So I  th ink  you – you can –  we can 

get  i t  admi t ted as  an Exhib i t  and you can read the re levant  

por t ions thereof .   I f  la ter  on they chal lenge i t  we wi l l  look at  

that .   You – as I  understand the posi t ion Mr Van B i l jon le f t  

South Af r i can.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Yes Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Last  year  I  th ink.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Yes Chai r.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   He now l ives in  New Zealand.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Yes Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   So ca l l ing h im may not  be necessary i f  a  

lo t  o f  what  he says is  not  be ing cha l lenged.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Yes Chai r.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   But  a lso,  i f  i t  is  covered by what  Mr Char l  

Le Roux says we – i t  might  not  be necessary to  ca l l  h im 

here but  the aff idavi t  could be [ ind is t inct ]  enough.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Yes.  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Obviously Ms Mokonyane and her  lawyers  

wi l l  be f ree to  cha l lenge whatever  they wish to  chal lenge.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Yes Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja okay.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Chai r  the – the aff idavi t  o f  Mr Van B i l jon  

you wi l l  f ind i t  –  i t  is  in  two p laces in  the – in  T13 and i t  is  10 

on T13.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Remember when you say T13 you ta lk  

about  Mr Char l  Le  Roux’s aff idavi t .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Chai r  that  i s… 

CHAIRPERSON:   So they bet te r  g ive i t  an exhib i t  o f  i ts  own 

– an exhib i t  number of  i ts  own i f  you are going to  refer  to  a  

number.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Can I  made a [ ind is t inct ]  can I  make th is  

– can I  make th is  proposal?  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm,  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   And so that  th is  is  formal ly  changed.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Can I  leave fo r  now the aff idavi t  o f  Mr  

Van B i l jon unt i l  the secretary would have g iven i t  a  
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separate… 

CHAIRPERSON:   That  is  f ine.   Ja.   That  is  f ine.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   A separate number so that  when I  read 

i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Because I  understand Chai r  i t  w i l l  cause 

a confusion.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   I f  I  ta lk  about  T13 la ter  on is  admi t ted.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  10 

ADV NOTSHE SC:   As another.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   What  – what  – but  what  – what  can 

be done is  that  d i f ferent  exhib i t s  namely d i f fe rent  a f f idavi ts  

can be in  the same lever  arch f i le .   What  is  important  is  to  

a lways ident i fy  the cor rect  exhib i t  number for  the  correct  

a ff idavi t .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   So i t  could st i l l  remain here i f  we know for  

example – i f  we mark i t  as Exhib i t  T14.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Yes.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Then when you refer  to  i t  you say I  am 

referr ing to  Exhib i t  T14.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   You know.   Then we can st i l l  use  i t  la ter  

on you – you wi l l  mark the lever  arch f i le  as  Bundle 
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whatever  and in  the sp ine – on the sp ine of  the lever  arch  

f i le .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I t  becomes – you make i t  c lear  that  the  

contents are Exhib i t  T13 and Exhib i t  T14.   So whoever p icks 

up the lever  arch f i le .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Knows what .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Knows that  the  contents are these two 

exhib i ts .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Yes.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   And – and i f  there is  an index that  wi l l  

show where to  f ind each one of  those exhib i ts .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   So in  other  words,  I  am saying i t  is  up to  

you – we can s t i l l  deal  wi th  Ms  Van – Mr Van B i l jon ’s  

aff idavi t  now but  we would need to  g ive i t  an exhib i t  number 

f i rs t .   I f  you are able to  g ive i t  an exhib i t  number now but  i f  

you cannot  g ive i t  an exhib i t  number now then we can deal  

wi th  i t  la te r  when you are ready to  g ive i t  an exhib i t  number.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Chai r  wi th  your  leave can i t  then be 20 

recorded that  Mr Van B i l jon ’s  aff idavi t  wi l l  be T14?  Did we 

not  start  f rom page 18? 

CHAIRPERSON:   Mr Renier van Bi l jon,  his aff idavi t .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   . . .wi l l  be admit ted and marked as Exhibi t  
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T14.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   That  is the aff idavi t  and i ts annexures.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.    

ADV NOTSHE SC:   That  is on T14,  page 38,  CLR38.  I t  is 

the commissioned statement.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Uh. . .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   CLR38.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   You want me to go to page 38? 10 

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Yes,  Chai r.   Just  to. . .  I  am just  indicat ing 

that  commissioned. . .  and I  want i t  to go on record that  the 

commissioned statement starts f rom 38 to 42 because before 

that ,  i t  is a mere statement that  has been signed but  i t  was 

not  commissioned.  I t  had to be sent  back to have i t  

commissioned, properly commissioned.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh,  you know what we must do?  Are they 

not  ident ical  the statement and the aff idavi t?  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   They are ident ical .  

CHAIRPERSON:   So why do we need the statement?  Why 20 

do we not  just  have the aff idavi t?  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   As the Chai r  p leases.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I f  the ident i ty. . .  I  guess because we have 

now given. . .  you have paginated them al l .   I t  could cause 

some problems here.   Then we should rather simply say,  the 
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statement has opposed to aff idavi t ,  is the one that  is  Exhibi t  

T or D.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  do not  know whether the statement had 

annexures? 

ADV NOTSHE SC:   The statement has annexures.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja,  so the statement of  Mr Renier,  R-e-n- i -

e-r  van B i l jon.   Bi l jon is B- i - l - j -o-n.   His statement dated. . .  i t  

is undated.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   I t  is undated statement,  yes.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   The undated statement together  wi th i ts 

annexures wi l l  be Exhibi t  J14.   And his  aff idavi t  wi l l  be 

admit ted and marked Exhibi t  T15.    

 So I  am correct  in what I  said ear l ier on.   I  said ear l ier  

on,  the aff idavi t  of  Mr Renier van Bi l jon would be admit ted 

and marked as Exhibi t  T14.    

 I  am changing that .   Exhibi t  T14 is his statement.   

Exhibi t  T15 is  his  aff idavi t  and the aff idavi t  is  dated or was 

deposed to on the 2n d of  July 2020.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Yes.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   So that  is together wi th i ts annexures and 

that  wi l l  be Exhibi t  T14.  

RICHARD LE ROUX’S STATEMENT WITH ANNEXURES ARE 

HANDED UP AND MARKED AS EXHIBIT T14 

RICHARD LE ROUX’S AFFIDAVIT IS HANDED UP AND 
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MARKED AS EXHIBIT T15 

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Chai r,  i t  is a  short  aff idavi t  that  I  can 

quickly read into the record.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   And I  start  reading.   I t  is:  

“ I  the undersigned Renier van Bi l jon do. . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Um, okay.   Unt i l  you got . . .  I  do not  th ink 

you should read i t  into the record as such but  you. . .  i f  you 10 

want to read a part icular port ion of  i t ,  you can do i t .   

Otherwise,  you can just  say what the gist  of  h is evidence or 

the crust  of  h is ev idence in that  aff idavi t  is.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Because i t  is avai lable as an aff idavi t .   

ADV NOTSHE SC:   The. . .  Chai rperson,  the. . .  i t  mere ly refers 

to the. . .  what is re levant  for today is his reference to the 

work done at  Mr Mokoena’s house.   And that  appears on 

page T15, CLR39,  paragraph 6 of  the aff idavi t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  I  th ink he. . .  h is evidence on the 20 

aff idavi t  is br ief ly  that  he. . .  he is a  qual i f ied electr ic ian and 

that  in 2015 he owned a company. . .  what is his company 

cal led?   

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   He owned a company which used to get  
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work f rom Bosasa.   Bosasa would sub-contract  i t  to do 

certain work for Bosasa and he. . .   

 This seems to have started when he at tended a cal l -out  

in 2015 at  Mr Agrizzi ’s home and he used to work wi th. . .  I  

wi l l  get  instruct ions f rom Mr Richard le Roux f rom Bosasa.  

 Wel l ,  maybe I  was wrong to rest r ic t  you Mr Notshe not  

reading.   Can I  leave i t  to you i f  you want to read i t?  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Chairperson,  just  to. . .  I  th ink paragraph 

6 just  gives the context  and then paragraph 7 then deals wi th  

the wi th the work of  where the wi tness did some work.   And I  10 

just  quick ly read that  paragraph 6.   And he says:  

“To my knowledge, I  was doing the work for Bosasa 

as a sub-cont ractor in the usual  manner in which we 

operated was as fol lows.  

Mr Le Roux would inform me of  an address where 

serv ices were to be provided and I  would meet him 

on the side.   

I  would evaluate the work to be done and then quote 

Bosasa for th is work,  st ipulat ing the i tems required 

such as CCTV f i t t ings and the l ike.  20 

I  would not  st ipulate the resident ia l  address on the 

quotat ion but  would simply refer to Bosasa on the 

quotat ion,  for  example,  i f  the pumps for the water  

feature had to be changed at  a residence,  the 

heading of  the quotat ion would merely state “water 
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feature pump”.  

As a f reelance electr ic ian I  sub-contracted and i t  was 

normal for me to quote by simply placing “water pump 

replaced” as the wording of  the quote and invoice.  

This were never h igh-value jobs.    

In certain instances,  I  would purchase equipment in  

order to affect  the repai rs and in other instances,  

Bosasa would purchase the i tems and provide this  to  

me.  

I  would then commence with the work and invoice 10 

Bosasa af ter complet ion.  

Al l  the quotat ions and invoices were made out  to  

ei ther Bosasa and/or Richard.    

There was normal ly no ment ion of  address where the 

work was provided on the quotat ion or invoice.  

I  recal l  th is as I  had to redo certa in quotat ions and 

invoices,  making sure that  there was no ment ion of  

the address.  

His inst ruct ions were given to me by Mr Le Roux. ”  

 There where. . .  in  the reference here wi th Mr le Roux,  20 

Richard le Roux,  not  the wi tness.  

“ I  would emai l  the quotat ions and invoices to Mr le  

Roux who would then arrange for payment into my 

account. ”  

 And then the heading “Work performed at  Min ister  



06 JULY 2020 – DAY 230 
 

Page 27 of 90 
 

Mokoena’s residence”,  paragraph 7:  

“ I  recal led that  I  performed work at  house number 

105,  Blouberg Street ,  Krugersdorp.  

The Commission’s invest igat ion’s team has provided 

me.. . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Um.. .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Chai r,  can I  cont inue? 

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am thinking of . . .  I  th ink the resident ia l  

address,  do not  ment ion i t . . .  do not  read i t  into the record.   

Just  ment ion that  the address is given for securi ty reasons.  10 

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Yes.   No,  that  is f ine.   My understand. . .  I  

understand Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja,  ja.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   No,  f rom then. . .  f rom now onwards,  we. . .  

a l though i t  is on the record,  I  wi l l  not  ment ion i t  in reading.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Ja.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   And then he says he was given the 

annexure by the invest igators. . .  he was g iven the annexure 

RVB1.  RVB1 shal l  be page 23 of  the bundle.   And then he 

says. . . [ intervenes]   20 

CHAIRPERSON:   No,  I  am just  th ink ing about the issue. . .  

Wel l ,  one is t ry ing to be sensi t ive to secur i ty issues but  th is 

wi tness,  for example,  needed to speci fy in his aff idavi t  what 

the address was,  just  l ike Mr Bi l jon needed to speci fy  

because there was a denial  that  Bosasa had. . . [ intervenes]   
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ADV NOTSHE SC:   Gone to the residence.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   So there was a need to do that .   So 

that  i t  made i t  necessary.   Also,  they impl icate that  they 

know what address as they were talk ing about but  maybe 

even when he g ives evidence,  we al l  now know which 

res idence he is ta lk ing about.    

 Maybe he could say that  i t  is the residence given in  his  

aff idavi t  wi thout  ment ioning the st reet  number and so on.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am just  t ry ing to see how one str ikes a 10 

balance. . . [ intervenes]   

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   . . .between.. .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   The. . .  Chai r,  the way I  see i t ,  especial ly 

wi th yesterday which makes me now know the premises that  

we visi ted.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   So. . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   There is no need to. . . [ intervenes]   

ADV NOTSHE SC:   The wi tness,  when I . . .  when 20 

. . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja. . . . [ intervenes]   

ADV NOTSHE SC:   . . .when he wi l l  test i fy. . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja. ,  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   . . .we advise him just  to refer i f  he wants 
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to ta lk about ,  “ the residence that  we vis i ted”.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja,  ja.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   And that  . . . [ indist inct ]  the res idence.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Ja.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   We have agreed that  th is is the 

res idence that  we have vis i ted.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja-no,  that  is f ine.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   And as I  understand i t  Chai r,  i t  is al l  

done for the purpose of  secur i ty.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  yes,  yes.  10 

ADV NOTSHE SC:   So that  one does not  expose 

. . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  ja.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   . . . the people to unnecessari ly insecuri ty.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Ja.   Okay.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   And then Chai r,  on page 23 the. . .  Mr van 

Bi l jon tel ls the Commission that  on page was shown 

photographs and on pages 23 and 24,  he conf i rms 

. . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am sorry.   I  was at  page 40 when.. .  I  20 

thought you were at  page 40.   I  am not  referr ing to CLR.  At  

page 40,  when I  thought you were. . .  I  thought you were at  

paragraph 8.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Yes,  at  paragraph 8.   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   H’m.  
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ADV NOTSHE SC:   No,  what I  wanted. . .  so I  beg your  

pardon.  

CHAIRPERSON:   You are going to annexures.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   I  beg your pardon.   What I  had done is I  

had removed the statement instead of  moving to the 

aff idavi t .   I  was reading f rom the. . .  no,  which is f ine.  

CHAIRPERSON:   You can go to  the aff idavi t  because that  

is. . . [ intervenes]   

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Yes.   No,  I  am going back to the 

aff idavi t .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Now he conf i rms that  the photographs 

that  were sent  to  him, is the photograph of  the “house that  

we v is i ted”.   And then he conf i rmed that  in addi t ion,  he was 

also provided wi th the deeds of  th is document of  that  

address and there is a deed regist ry ext ract  which g ives the 

owners of  the residence as Mr and Mrs Mokoena.  

 And on the aff idavi t  and on the document,  their  names 

and ID documents are there.   And I ,  wi th  your leave,  I  would 

not  read them into the record but  they are.  20 

 And then he says that  he was in formed that  Nomvula 

Mokoena was a minister of  par l iament.    

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am qui te happy for  you to read as you are 

reading.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Is i t . . .  okay,  I  have been informed by. . .  I  
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am now at  paragraph 10 Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    

“ I  have been informed by the Commission’s 

invest igat ing team that  Nomvula Paula Mokoena was 

a minister of  par l iament in the South Afr ican 

Government.   I  have checked an open source media 

where i t  is reported that  a certain Mokoena was the 

husband of  Ms Nomvula and d ied in Apri l  2019.  

At  the t ime I  was unaware that  the house in  Blouberg 10 

Street  be longed to or was occupied by Minister 

Mokoena.  

The fact  that  there were two pol ice off icers at  the 

main gate,  obviously,  a lerted me to the fact  that  i t  

was occupied by someone important .  

On one occasion I  was cal led to the house one 

evening to at tend to the backup power system where 

the generator system would not  star t  and met such.  

He was a f r iendly guy but  he did not  ment ion his  

surname and did not  ment ion his wi fe’s posi t ion.  20 

On most occasions,  Mr le Roux met  on si te at  105 

Blouberg Street  and he showed me what needed to 

be done.   

I  th ink in al l  of  the t ime that  I  d id  work at  th is si te ,  

there was possib le two occasions where I  went to the 
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B louberg si te wi thout  Mr le Roux being present ,  and 

below is a l ist  of  some of  the things I  recal led doing 

at  the house:  

-  I  repaired and reprogrammed the generator change 

over.  

-  I  replaced the dis t r ibut ion board for the swimming 

pool .    

-  Replaced the outside stair  l ights leading to the 

house.    

-  Repaired the electr ic fence,  cal led out  to repai r  a i r  10 

condi t ioner system one night .    

-  Cal led out  to repair  the generator one night .  

-  And replaced and rewired some of  the water  

features.  

I  would est imate that  I  went  to the si te to perform 

work there on approximately ten occasions.    

I  have searched for and located certain quotat ions 

and invoices for work performed the invoices.   And 

then. . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   I  th ink you can just  read that  as wel l  20 

because there is some signi f icance because he g ives detai ls 

of  what work was done.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   He gives the pr ices as wel l .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Yes.   The f i rst  invoice is. . . [ intervenes]   
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CHAIRPERSON:   And he gives dates. . . [ intervenes]   

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   . . . for when the work was done.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Yes,  the f i rst  invoice,  he has. . .  three is  

quoted as. . .  3232UE and i t  seems to be the 

9t h of  October 2014 and the invoice quotat ion made to “cash 

– Ricard”.   And then type of  work done” “ inspect  and rotate 

al ternator”  and i t  is R 750,00.  

 And the second invoice is,  323 invoice.   I t  is  

15 October 2014, “cash – Ricard;  the generator is tested and 10 

is hundred percent  operat ional .   A separate test  report  wi l l  

be made”,  and i t  is R 750,00.  

 And then another 323,  the 10t h of  October 2014,  “cash – 

Ricard;  replace pool  DB at  R 2 999,23”.  

 The next  invoice is 323 and 15 October 2014, “cash – 

Ricard;  replace pool  DB and i t  is R 2 741,89”.  

 And then the next  invoice is 161 repai rs to l ightn ing”.   

Then refer and then “ labour,  normal t ime, B louberg” and i t  is  

R 6 609,00.  

 And then another  invoice 1 and 5,  3r d May 2015,  20 

Blouberg Street  “ the extra l ights at  Blouberg”.   I t  is 

R 1 044,70.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  th ink. . . [ intervenes]   

ADV NOTSHE SC:   And he makes. . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   . . . just  not ing here,  the boardroom there of  
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the . . . [ intervenes]   

ADV NOTSHE SC:   He makes. . .  and he makes a note,  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   H’m? 

ADV NOTSHE SC:   I t  is a document state on my system as 

Q324QUE and 241 invoice.   However,  the documents 

referred to 323QUE and 323 Invoice which appeared to be 

have been admit ted in error.  

 He goes on to say:  

“Copies of  these quotat ions and invoices are 

at tached hereto as Annexures RB3.  And i t  must  be 10 

noted that  certain of  these may not  have been the 

f inal  documents sent  out  to Mr le Roux.  

With regards to invoice dated 15 October 2014, in the  

table above,  where i t  is stated “generator has been 

tested and is hundred percent  operat ional” ,  I  a lso 

managed to locate a copy of  the generator  test  report  

which is at tached hereto as Annexure RVB4. 

The generator test  report  ref lects the address as 

being. . .  (and then gives the address) and the date of  

inspect ion,  10/15/2014.. . ”  20 

 Chai r,  I  th ink there is the American system of  put t ing the 

month before the date.   I  th ink i t  is the 15t h.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh.   Oh, yes.   Okay.   Yes.   We can say 

that  the address that  he g ives there of  the house is the 

. . . [ intervenes]   
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ADV NOTSHE SC:   Is the house. . .  that  was. . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   . . . is the address that  you vis i ted.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   H’m.  Yes? 

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Chai r,  to complete his aff idavi t .   He says:  

“ I  performed serv ices for Bosasa under Mr le Roux 

for approximate ly May 2014 to 2018. 

Over these years,  I  est imate that  I  performed 

serv ices at  approximately four si tes.  

I  recal l  that  I  per formed work at  Mr Gavin Watson’s 10 

house,  where I  replaced certa in plug points.  

Mr Watson arr ived whi lst  I  was on si te and he 

int roduced himsel f  to me.  

I  no longer have the business and ever  since 

immigrated.    

I  do not  have documentat ion ref lect ing the detai l  o f 

a l l  the work I  performed and I  cannot remember every 

job I  performed.”  

 I t  is a sworn statement.   Chai r,  here the. . .  my junior has 

referred me to. . .  there is an issue that  he raised of  the name 20 

of  the business.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Does i t  not . . . [ intervenes]    

ADV NOTSHE SC:   He. . .  on 3.2 of  the aff idavi t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Paragraph 3.2? 

ADV NOTSHE SC:   3.2.    
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CHAIRPERSON:   Yes? 

ADV NOTSHE SC:   On page 38,  i t  is Sanimo Electr ical .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh,  yes.   Yes.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.    

ADV NOTSHE SC:   I  apologise,  Chai r.   I  a lso had read i t  but  

wi th the blood r inging in my ears and in my eyes,  I  could not  

recal l  where the name and where I  had found i t  in the 

aff idavi t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  10 

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Um.. . [ intervenes]   

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Chai r,  can I  beg leave to have 

. . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am looking for  RB.. .  RVB4.  Where is  

RVB4? 

ADV NOTSHE SC:   [No audible reply]   

CHAIRPERSON:   I  cannot see an annexure marked RVB4. 

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Let  me just . . .  Chai r,  can I  a lso explain 

what the problem also may. . .  we have is. . .  Chai r,  you wi l l  20 

note. . .  just  bear wi th me.  

CHAIRPERSON:   H’m? 

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Just  bear one minute wi th me.  

CHAIRPERSON:   You wi l l  see at  page 43 the Commissioner  

of  Oaths says this is the document marked A referred to in  
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the aff idavi t  of  Renier  van Bi l jon but  I  do not  remember 

that . . .  

MECHANICAL INTERRUPTION 

ADV NOTSHE SC:   . . .what  the Austral ian. . .  the New 

Zealanders did Chair  is,  they did not  give the annexures the 

number that  is in the aff idavi t .    

CHAIRPERSON:   H’m.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   For as al l  the invoices instead of  RV, 

they gave them numbers A,  B,  C,  D,  E,  F,  G.  And then. . .  but  

i f  the statement that  he has signed. . .  the statement  that  he 10 

has signed maintains the numbers that  he had given but  

these were then. . .   the Commissioner of  Oaths then gave 

them di fferent  numbers.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Can you arrange that  we get  

supplementary aff idavi t  f rom him that  c lar i f ies the posi t ion to 

say the document  marked so and so by the Commissioner of  

Oaths is actual ly the document  I  re ferred to as so and so in 

my aff idavi t?  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Yes.   Actual ly,  Chai r  I  would also 

arrange. . .  we must also see i f  he can get  to the same 20 

Commissioner of  Oaths who can conf i rm the document.   And 

then Chai r,  can I  take you to T14,  CR34.. .  37,  I  beg your  

pardon? 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja? 

ADV NOTSHE SC:   [No audible reply]   
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CHAIRPERSON:   Yes? 

ADV NOTSHE SC:   There,  Chai r,  you wi l l  see th is is the test ,  

the generator test  report  that  he refers to but  i t  is  lef t  out  in 

the aff idavi t .   Perhaps the supplementary aff idavi t ,  we wi l l  

deal  wi th that  as wel l .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   So I  just  want to make sure that  

there is consistency between what the aff idavi t  says and 

what the annexures are marked.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja,  what they are marked as because i f  the 10 

aff idavi t  says a certain document is marked RB.. .  RVB4 and 

you go to the annexures and you do not  f ind RVB4, you are 

ent i t led to th ink there is no RVB4 

ADV NOTSHE SC:   I  take your. . .  I  take your point ,  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   So we just  need to make sure that  that  is 

sorted out .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   I  take your point ,  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   Okay.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Then with your leave,  can the statement  

and the. . .  the statement and then the aff idavi t  be admit ted as 20 

Exhibi ts T14 and T15?   

 And then Chai r,  let  the record then also ref lects that  an 

addi t ional  aff idavi t  is sought to al ign the. . .  what is the said in 

the aff idavi t  wi th the exhibi ts that  the wi tness is referr ing to? 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  we have al ready admit ted them,  
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Exhibi t  D14 and Exhibi t  D15.  I  th ink or have we not? 

ADV NOTSHE SC:   No,  I  th ink. . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   We have marked Exhibi t  T15.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Chai r,  you d id make a rul ing to that  

effect .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   But  i t  is for completeness sake,  yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja,  okay.   A lr ight .    

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Chai r,  then the wi tness can. . .  can I  

request  that  the wi tness be sworn in? 10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Before we.. .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  please administer the oath 

aff i rmat ion.   I  see the l ight ing is tak ing long to arr ive.    

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Apparent ly Chair,  i t  wi l l  be set  up dur ing 

tea-t ime.  Unless the Chair  would want us to  adjourn now?  I t  

is eleven o’clock.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l ,  i f  i t  is ready,  we could adjourn now 

so that  i t  is sorted out  i f  they are here and i t  is ready.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   And then we can come back at  quarter. . .  20 

come back at  quarter. . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   At  quarter past . . . [ intervenes]   

ADV NOTSHE SC:   At  quarter past  eleven.  

CHAIRPERSON:   They want to te l l  you something.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   No,  then. . .  I  am advised that  the best  is 
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to proceed as we are proceeding. . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja? 

ADV NOTSHE SC:   . . .so that  they can take the f i f teen 

minutes between now and tea adjournment. . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Al r ight .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   . . . to set  themselves up.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Al r ight .   Okay administer the oath or 

aff i rmat ion.  

REGISTRAR :   P lease state your fu l l  names for the record.  

MR LE ROUX:   Charl  Jacques Le Roux.  10 

REGISTRAR :   Do you have any object ion in tak ing the 

prescr ibed oath? 

MR LE ROUX:   No.  

REGISTRAR :   Do you consider the oath to be binding on 

your conscience? 

MR LE ROUX:   Yes.  

REGISTRAR :   Do you swear that  the ev idence you wi l l  g ive 

wi l l  be the t ruth,  the whole t ruth and nothing else but  the 

t ruth?  I f  so,  please raise your r ight  hand and say,  so help 

me God.  20 

MR LE ROUX:   Yes.   And so help me God.  

REGISTRAR :   Thank you.  

CHARL JACQUES LE ROUX :   (d.s.s. )  

CHAIRPERSON:    Thank you,  you may be seated.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Mr  le  Roux ,  i s  i t  cor rec t  you were  
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con tac ted  by  the  invest iga to rs  o f  the  Commiss ion?  The 

invest iga to r  o f  the  Commiss ion  a t  some s tage ta lked to 

you?  

MR LE ROUX:    Yes.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    As  a  resu l t  o f  the  in te rv iew,  you made  

a  s ta tement .  

MR LE ROUX:    Yes.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    And you have the  s ta tement  in  f ron t  o f  

you?  

MR LE ROUX:    Yes,  I  do .  10 

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Cha i r,  the  s ta tement  i s  T13 .   I t  i s  

EXHIBIT T13.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  i t  has  been admi t ted  a l ready,  h is  

a f f idav i t .    

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Can you then go th rough and read the  

s ta tement  fo r  the  Commiss ion?  

CHAIRPERSON:    No,  no ,  he  must  no t  read the  s ta tement ,  

ask  h im to  te l l  the  s to ry .   I  th ink  he  was employed  by  h i s  

cous in  or  somebody,  Mr  van B i l jon .    

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Mr  van B i l jon  ( ind is t inc t  –  record ing  20 

d is to r ted)  background or  how d id  you get  to  be  invo lved in  

th is?  

MR LE ROUX:    Yes,  yes ,  I  worked fo r  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Mr  le  Roux,  he  w i l l  ask  you quest ions 

most  o f  the  t ime but  when you g ive  an  answer,  face  me? 
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MR LE ROUX:    I  w i l l  do  tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay.   You were  –  were  you  

employed a t  some s tage by  a  company tha t  was owned by  

Mr  van B i l jon?  

MR LE ROUX:    Yes,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON:    What  was the  name o f  the  company?  

MR LE ROUX:    SAN E lec t r i ca l .  

CHAIRPERSON:    SAN E lec t r i ca l?  

MR LE ROUX:    E lec t r i ca l ,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON:    He g ives in  h i s  a f f idav i t  a  fu l l  name fo r,  10 

SAN,  i s  Samina o r  someth ing?  

MR LE ROUX:    Yes,  yes ,  tha t  i s  i t ,  we jus t  used the  

shor te r  vers ion ,  Mr  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   From when up to  when were  you 

employed by  tha t  company?  

MR LE ROUX:    I t  was f rom mid-2014 unt i l  las t  yea r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Unt i l  las t  year?  

MR LE ROUX:    Yes,  yes ,  m idd le  o f  las t  yea r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .   What  was your  pos i t ion  in  h is  

company?  20 

MR LE ROUX:    I  was lea rn ing  to  become an e lec t r i c ian?  

CHAIRPERSON:    A re  you a  qua l i f ied  e lec t r i c ian?  

MR LE ROUX:    No,  no ,  no t  ye t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  bu t  you know -  you are  ab le  to  do  

some e lec t r i ca l  work?  
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MR LE ROUX:    Yes,  yes ,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes and tha t  i s  what  you were  ass i s t ing  

h im wi th .  

MR LE ROUX:    Yes,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  take  i t  f rom there ,  Mr  Notshe.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    And then d id  you then do some work  

on  then the  ins t ruc t ions o f  Mr  van B i l jon?  

MR LE ROUX:    Yes,  yes .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    And as  you must  have heard  du r ing  the  

in te rac t ion  w i th  the  Cha i rperson tha t  we want  to  s tay  away  10 

f rom g iv ing  the  fu l l  addresses o f  the  work  you d id .   I s  i t  

cor rec t  tha t  yes terday,  you together  w i th  the  invest iga tors ,  

the  lega l  team for  the  Commiss ion  and …[ in tervenes ]  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  am so r ry,  Mr  Notshe,  be fore  you come 

to  yesterday,  I  wou ld  l i ke  to  hear  h im ta lk  about  what  he  

d id  a t  the  address tha t  you  -  we a re  no t  ment ion ing  a t  tha t  

t ime before  you come to  yeste rday.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    No,  Cha i r,  w i th  your  leave ,  I  jus t  

wanted h im to  conf i rm he went  to  a  p lace .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  20 

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Where  he  d id  some work .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    And then we go back to… 

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  okay,  okay,  okay,  tha t  i s  f ine .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    You v is i ted  a  house in  Krugersdorp .  
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MR LE ROUX:    Yes,  yes .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    And tha t  house you v is i ted ,  d id  you do 

any work  on  the  house?  

MR LE ROUX:    Yes,  yes ,  we d id  some work .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Can you te l l  the  Cha i rpe rson about  the 

work  you d id?  

MR LE ROUX:    Yes,  yes ,  I  can.   We f i xed some l igh ts  

there ,  ou ts ide  l igh ts  on  the  s ta i r case and the  water  fea ture  

and the  power  sys tem wou ld  no t  –  the  backup power  

sys tem wou ld  no t  s ta r t  and we f i xed  tha t  as  we l l .  10 

ADV NOTSHE SC:    And what  was wrong w i th  the  –  w i th  

what  you had f i xed ,  what  you were  f i x ing?  I f  you  went  

there ,  what  d id  you f ind  wrong w i th  the  issues tha t  you 

f i xed?  

MR LE ROUX:    Au tomat ic  changeover  wou ld  no t  work  on  

the  backup sys tem and we f i xed  tha t  and then the  ou ts ide  

l igh ts ,  i t  was not  work ing ,  any o f  them,  so  we took them 

out  and put  new ones in .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Now can you jus t  te l l  the  Commiss ion ,  

when you went  there  fo r  the  f i rs t  t ime d id  you make any  20 

observa t ions when you ente red the  house,  the  premises?  

MR LE ROUX:    Yes,  yes .   There  was –  I  cou ld  see  on tha t  

h igh  fenc ing  the re  and there  was guardhouse there  w i th  a  

man the re  tha t  opened fo r  us  when  we came the re .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Now jus t  s top  there .   The guardhouse,  
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when you entered the  p remises ,  on  wh ich  s ide  is  the  

guardhouse?  

MR LE ROUX:    On the  le f t  s ide .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Yes.   You entered the  p remises,  was  

there  any o ther  t h ing  you not iced?  

MR LE ROUX:    Yes,  yes ,  when we worked there ,  I  no t iced 

there  was an expens ive  ca r  there ,  an  Aston Mar t in .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Sor ry,  I  d id  no t  ge t  tha t?  

MR LE ROUX:    I  no t iced there  was an expens ive  car  

there ,  an  Aston Mar t in .  10 

ADV NOTSHE SC:    I s  tha t  then the  name o f  the  ca r?  

MR LE ROUX:    Yes,  yes ,  Aston Mar t in .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Where  was the  car?  

MR LE ROUX:    I t  was in  the  m idd le  garage door.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Was i t  s tand ing  there  on  i t s  own and 

how was i t  s tand ing  there?  How was i t  parked there? 

MR LE ROUX:    I t  was covered w i th  a  spec ia l  ca r  cover  so   

I  jus t  looked a t  i t  and looked because I  l i ke  ca rs .  

CHAIRPERSON:    D id  you go to  tha t  house once or  more  

than once pr io r  to  yeste rday?  20 

MR LE ROUX:    I  am not  sure ,  i t  was many t imes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay.   Now,  as  fa r  as  poss ib le  I  

want  you to  te l l  me –  g ive  me your  ev idence f rom your  

reco l lec t ion  bu t  your  s ta tement ,  your  a f f idav i t  i s  there  in  

case you want  to  re f resh your  memory.   A re  you  ab le  to  



06 JULY 2020 – DAY 230 
 

Page 46 of 90 
 

remember  what  you went  to  do  on  the  f i rs t  occas ion  you 

went  there?  

MR LE ROUX:    On the  f i rs t  t ime we jus t  …[ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    And you can look a t  you r  a f f idav i t  to  

re f resh your  memory  and Mr  Notshe can ass is t  you in  

te rms o f  where  tha t  –  in  wh ich  paragraph tha t  i s  dea l t  w i th ,  

i f  necessary.    

MR LE ROUX:   I f  you  look a t  …[ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    So  want  you to  te l l  me on the  f i rs t  

occas ion  I  went  there ,  th is  i s  what  was wrong,  I  had been  10 

ins t ruc ted  to  do  a ,  b ,  c ,  d .   I  went  there ,  I  d id  i t  o r  I  d id  no t  

do  i t ,  fo r  whatever  reason.   On the  next  occas ion  aga in  –  

you might  no t  need to  dea l  w i th  a l l  o f  them but  a t  leas t  

some o f  them.  

MR LE ROUX:    Yes,  I  can do tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR LE ROUX:    Yes,  the  f i rs t  morn ing  I  met  there  w i th  Mr  

le  Roux and then he showed us  tha t  the  backup  power  

sys tem does not  work .   So we then had a  l ook a t  i t  bu t  then 

I  le f t  and Mr  van B i l jon ,  he  went  back and he f i xed  i t .  20 

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Can you -do  you remember  when,  what  

year,  what  month ,  what  da te  was tha t?  

MR LE ROUX:    I  am not  hundred percent  sure .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    I  see .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  wou ld  you remember  the  year?   
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Wou ld  you remember  the  year,  even i f  you do not  

remember  the  month  or  the  da te?  

MR LE ROUX:    2014,  i t  was jus t  when I  s ta r ted  work ing ,  

about ,  ja .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    And then on another  occas ion  -  you 

say you le f t  then,  Mr  B i l jon  went  back and then? 

MR LE ROUX:    Yes,  then I  went  there  the  next  t ime,  they 

sa id  the  ou ts ide  l igh ts  on  the  wa lkway to  the  house does  

not  work .   I t  was  the  l igh ts  on  the  s ta i rcase and the  l igh ts  10 

were  –  or  they were  no  longer  work ing ,  so  we took them 

out  and put  new l igh ts  in .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    In  the  house o r  ou ts ide  the  house?  

MR LE ROUX:    Outs ide  the  house.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    I  see .   Wha t  year  was th is?   Do you  

remember?  

MR LE ROUX:    A lso ,  tha t  same year.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    And then,  the  next  occas ion?  

MR LE ROUX:    I t  was in  tha t  same week we were  there  to  

f i x  the  – there  is  the  smal l  water  fea ture  there ,  i t  was not  20 

work ing .   We pumped out  a l l  the  water  so  we cou ld  pu t  a  

new pump in  there  and then – and  there  was l igh ts  on  the 

ou ts ide  en ter ta inment  a rea tha t  we f i xed ,  down l igh ts  in  the  

ce i l ing .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Now before  you ta lk  about  the  th i rd  



06 JULY 2020 – DAY 230 
 

Page 48 of 90 
 

occas ion  or  one  o f  the  occas ions,  another  one  o f  the 

occas ions when you went  the re ,  can you jus t  go  back to  

desc r ib ing  some o f  the  fea tures  o f  the  premises  a t  tha t  

house or  a t  tha t  address tha t  you had seen and you had 

inc luded in  your  a f f idav i t?    

So I  am leav ing  ou t  what  you  may have seen 

yesterday,  Mr  Notshe w i l l  come to  tha t  in  due  course .   

What  you d id  reca l l  be fore  yeste rday,  when you deposed to  

your  a f f idav i t  to  say  th i s  i s  what  you remembered about  the  

house.   D id  you remember  about  the  –  d id  you remember  10 

the  guardhouse?  

MR LE ROUX:    Yes,  yes ,  guardhouse,  there  was one guard  

there .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR LE ROUX:    He was a lways there ,  he  opened fo r  us .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  was i t  the  same person?  When you 

went  there  was i t  the  same guy?  

MR LE ROUX:    Yes,  yes ,  i t  was.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  yes .   I  am go ing  to  j ump to  

yesterday jus t  fo r  now.   D id  you f ind  the  same person 20 

yesterday or  i t  was d i f fe ren t?  

MR LE ROUX:    I  do  no t  remember  because i t  has  been 

…[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .   I t  has  been a  long t ime,  okay.   So 

you do not  know whethe r  i t  was the  same guy o r  no t .  
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MR LE ROUX:    No,  no .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

MR LE ROUX:    I  do  no t  know.  

CHAIRPERSON:    So  the  guardhouse,  where  in  re la t ion  to  

the  ga te  i s  the  guardhouse,  as  you remember  i t  f rom tha t  

t ime,  leav ing  ou t  the  fac t  tha t  you say i t  yes terday?  

MR LE ROUX:    I t  i s  –  when you wa lk  in to  the  main  ga te  i t  

i s  on  the  le f t -hand s ide .  

CHAIRPERSON:    I t  i s  on  the  le f t  hand s ide .  

MR LE ROUX:    Yes.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    What  o ther  fea tures  o f  the  house  d id  you 

remember  be fo re  yesterday wh ich  you inc luded in  your  

a f f idav i t?  

MR LE ROUX:    I  jus t  know i t  was  a  b ig  house and  a  poo l  

was there .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR LE ROUX:    And the  genera to r  tha t  we worked  on,  i t  

was beh ind  the  house.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I t  was beh ind  the  house.  

MR LE ROUX:    Yes.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    The genera to r.  

MR LE ROUX:    Yes  and i t  had a  smal l  board  tha t  sw i tches 

i t  on  and o f f ,  i t  was ins ide  next  to  an  open garage.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   And one o f  the  occas ions your  

a f f idav i t  says  you were  work ing  there  and you were  in  the  
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garage and you saw someth ing .   Te l l  me about  tha t?  

MR LE ROUX:    Yes,  I  worked there  then I  saw what  looked  

l i ke  to  be  an  expens ive  car  and then I  looked and I  saw i t  

was an  Aston Mar t in  s tand ing  there .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes and what  was the  co lou r  o f  the  

Aston Mar t in  tha t  you saw on tha t  day,  2015 o r  2014? 

MR LE ROUX:    I t  was long –  i t  was too  long  ago to  

remember  exact ly.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR LE ROUX:    Bu t  I  know tha t  i t  is  wh i te ,  yes .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   Wel l ,  in  your  a f f idav i t  you say i t  

was da rk  o r  da rk  b lue  o r  b lack .  

MR LE ROUX:    Yes,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON:    I s  tha t  cor rec t?   That  i s  what  you say in  

your  a f f idav i t .  

MR LE ROUX:    Yes,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Does tha t  remind you o f  how i t  looked 

l i ke?   What  the  co lou r  was?  

MR LE ROUX:    Yes,  yes ,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r i gh t .   Mr  Notshe,  take  i t  f rom 20 

there .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Cha i r,  I  see  the  t ime is  quar te r  past  

e leven.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh.   Yes,  le t  us  take  th is  –  w i l l  the  

ord inary  15  minu tes  be  enough?  Or  i f  i t  i s  no t  enough,  I  
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w i l l  be  to ld .   So we w i l l  ad jou rn  un t i l  ha l f  past  e leven but  i f  

they  a re  no t  done  sor t ing  ou t  the  l igh t  then I  w i l l  be  to ld .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    We wi l l  send a  message.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  we ad journ .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Thank you.  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES 

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Mr  le  Roux,  you a re  jus t  reminded you 

are  s t i l l  under  oa th .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  you are  s t i l l  under  oa th ,  Mr  le  Roux.   10 

Wi l l  the  personne l  o f  the  Commiss ion  t ry  and ar range a  

l igh t  tha t  can put  here  on  the  desk?  I  d id  ask  tha t  th is  be  

done some t ime back.   Okay,  le t  us  cont inue.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Now,  Mr  le  Roux,  you were  te l l ing  the  

Commiss ion  abou t  –  tha t  you went  in  and you saw a  motor  

veh ic le  in  the  ga rage.   What  i s  the  co lour  o f  the  –  do  you  

remember  the  co lour  o f  the  moto r  veh ic le  you saw? 

MR LE ROUX:    Yes,  I  am rea l l y  –  I  am to ld  i t  was dark  and 

tha t  i t  was a  long ,  long t ime ago,  so  I  was not  sure .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  in  your  a f f idav i t  wh ich  was deposed 20 

to  on  the  17  March 2020 you gave the  co lou r  o f  the  motor  

veh ic le  as  I  th ink  tha t  b lue  or  b lack .  

MR LE ROUX:    Yes,  tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    How d id  you remember  the  co lour  then?   

How d id  you remember  the  co lour  in  March but  you seem to  
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have d i f f i cu l t y  te l l ing  us  the  co lour  now.  

MR LE ROUX:    No,  no ,  i t  was –  I  mean because yeste rday  

I  had a  look on  the  ca r  and I  saw tha t  i t  was in  fac t  wh i te .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Jus t  repeat  tha t?  

MR LE ROUX:    Yesterday I  d id  have a  look a t  the  car  and 

I  saw tha t  i t  was  wh i te  and tha t  i n  March my memory  –  I  

to ld  you tha t  i t  was e i ther  da rk  b lue  or  b lack .  

CHAIRPERSON:    D id  you say tha t  when you saw i t  

yes terday tha t  i t  was wh i te?  

MR LE ROUX:    Yes.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    So  i t  was not  b lue  or  dark  b lue?  

MR LE ROUX:    No,  no .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Or  b lack?  

MR LE ROUX:    No,  i t  was not .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh.   Okay,  bu t  –  so  you see in  March  

your  reco l lec t ion  was tha t  you had  seen an Aston Mar t in  in  

the  garage o f  the  res idence and tha t  i t  was dark  b lue  o r  

b lack .  

MR LE ROUX:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    That  i s  what  you r  reco l lec t ion  was? 20 

MR LE ROUX:    Yes,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  you say yes terday you saw an Aston 

Mar t in  a t  the  res idence concerned but  the  co lour  was 

wh i te?  

MR LE ROUX:    Yes.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  Mr  Notshe,  do  you want  to  take  i t  

f rom there?  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    And tha t  make o f  the  car  was i t  tha t  

you saw yesterday?  

MR LE ROUX:    As ton  Mar t in .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Okay.   Now …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  am sor ry,  when you saw a  wh i te  Aston  

Mar t in  yeste rday  d id  you reca l l  tha t  the  Aston Mar t in  you  

had seen in  2014  or  2015 a t  the  same res idence was wh i te  

o r  you assumed tha t  i t  was wh i te  and was the  same car?  10 

MR LE ROUX:    I t  m igh t  be  a  newer  vers ion  o f  tha t  same 

mode l ,  I  am not  sure .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Now dark  b lue  or  b lack  ca r  i s  qu i te  

d i f fe ren t  f rom a  wh i te  ca r,  those co lours  are  very  d i f fe ren t .   

How does i t  come about  tha t  …[ in tervenes]  

MR LE ROUX:    Yes,  yes… 

CHAIRPERSON:    Your  reco l lec t ion  in  March was tha t  the  

car  you had seen was dark  b lue  or  b lack  bu t  now you – 

now tha t  you have seen a  wh i te  one,  you do not  seem to  be  

conf ident  whethe r  the  one you had seen was dark  b lue  o r  20 

b lack .  

MR LE ROUX:    Yes,  yes ,  tha t  i s  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    How does i t  come about  -  I  wou ld  have 

thought  tha t  i f  someth ing  was wh i te  o r  i f  the  car  t ha t  you 

had seen was wh i te  o r  was b lack  i t  wou ld  be  qu i te  easy to  
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remember  tha t  you had not  seen a  wh i te  ca r,  you had seen  

a  b lack  car  o r  b lue  ca r  ra the r  than not  be ing  sure .  

MR LE ROUX:    Yes,  yes ,  they had  many cars  a t  tha t  house 

tha t  was dark  so  my memory  jus t  sa id  tha t  i t  had to  be  da rk  

as  we l l .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  wou ld  tha t  be  anyth ing  tha t  you 

not iced tha t  conv inced you tha t  the  car  you saw yesterday 

was the  same ca r  you say in  2014 or  2015 or  cou ld  i t  be  

tha t  the  car  you saw yeste rday is  a  d i f fe ren t  car  f rom the  

one tha t  you saw in  2014 or  2015? 10 

MR LE ROUX:    Yes,  i t  m igh t  be  a  d i f fe ren t  car,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON:    You are  no t  sure .  

MR LE ROUX:    I  am not  sure ,  no .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   But  what  you are  su re  about  i s  tha t  

the  ca r  you had seen was an  Aston  Mar t in .  

MR LE ROUX:    Yes,  yes ,  tha t  I  am sure  o f .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   Mr  Notshe? 

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Jus t  on  tha t ,  Mr  le  Roux,  how long –  

how much t ime d id  you have and how long d id  i t  take  you  

to  look  a t  the  car,  d id  you open  the  cover,  spend t ime 20 

look ing  a t  i t  o r  u  jus t  l i f ted  the  enc losed ca r,  the  cover?  

MR LE ROUX:    I  jus t  l i f ted  i t  and looked a t  i t  and c losed i t  

aga in .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    And a t  the  t ime –  so r ry,  Cha i r,  i t  i s  –  
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Cha i r,  I  must  jus t  apo log ise  because o f  the  d is tance now 

and aga in  I  have  to  run  back and fo r th  and I  apo log ise  fo r  

tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   No,  I  unders tand yes,  because o f  

the  soc ia l  d is tanc ing .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    So  I  unders tand .   I t  i s  okay,  i t  i s  okay.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    I t  i s  good fo r  exerc i s ing .  

CHAIRPERSON:    She might  no t  l i ke  your  suggest ion  tha t  

she needs exerc i se .  10 

ADV NOTSHE SC:    That  i s  the  –  the  i ssue I  was  w i th ,  Mr  

le  Roux,  i s  you say you jus t  l i f ted  th is  and then c losed i t  

aga in .  

MR LE ROUX:    Yes,  yes .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    I  see .   Now,  te l l  me,  when you went  

there ,  when you looked a t  the  ca r,  d id  you look a t  i t  w i th  

the  pu rpose o f  observ ing  i t  so  tha t  you can repor t  about  

the  co lour  o f  the  car  and the  cover,  you were  jus t  look ing  

a t  i t  fo r  in te res t  sake?  

MR LE ROUX:    No,  no ,  I  jus t  looked out  o f  in te res t  to  see  20 

what  i s  underneath  the  cover,  tha t  i s  a l l .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    I  see .   Now th is  o ther  po in t  you  ra ised  

in  your  s ta tement ;  how d id  you ge t  to  the  premises?  How 

d id  you get  to  the  premises?   When you ge t  to  the  

premises,  ou ts ide  the  premises,  how do you get  in?  
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MR LE ROUX:    There  i s  a  man  tha t  works  there  in  the  

guard  room,  he  opens fo r  us .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    How do you  communica te  w i th  h im to  

open fo r  you?  

MR LE ROUX:    I  jus t  hoot .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    I  see .   And then he wou ld  open? 

MR LE ROUX:    Then he wou ld  open,  yes .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    In  the  t ime tha t  you were  there  d id  he  

ask  you why you were  there ,  what  you wou ld  do ,  what  you  

were  look ing  fo r?  10 

MR LE ROUX:    No,  no ,  no th ing ,  he  jus t  le t  us  in  and we 

wou ld  do  what  …[ in tervenes]  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    You wou ld  hoot  and they wou ld  open  

fo r  you.  

MR LE ROUX:    Yes.   

ADV NOTSHE SC:    And you go in  and do the  work .  

MR LE ROUX:    Yes,  yes .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Okay.   Te l l  me,  the  van you were  

dr iv ing  f rom SAN E lec t r i ca l  d id  i t  have a  mark ing  on  the  

s ide  to  show where  i t  was f rom? 20 

MR LE ROUX:    No mark ings,  no .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    So  you d id  no t  ident i f y  yourse l f  to  the  

person a t  the  ga te?  

MR LE ROUX:    No,  no ,  I  d id  no t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Excuse me,  a  guard  a t  the  ga te  i s  
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supposed to  on ly  a l low fami ly  members  in  and  i f  i t  i s  

peop le  who a re  no t  fami ly  members  you wou ld  have  –  or  i f  

you  wou ld  have to  check tha t  the  person is  au thor ised to  

come in to  the  premises,  I  th ink .   How cou ld  the  guard  – do  

you know why the  guard  wou ld  jus t  open fo r  you w i thout  

ask ing  you quest i ons?  

MR LE ROUX:    I  th ink  tha t  he  recogn ised my car  and he 

opened fo r  us  because he had seen us  there  in  t he  past  

work ing .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  no ,  I  cannot  hear  tha t .   Would  you  10 

p lease jus t  repea t  what  you sa id?  

MR LE ROUX:    I  th ink  he  wou ld  open fo r  us  because he  

wou ld  recogn ise  my ca r  as  I  had  worked there  on  o ther  

days when he was there  as  we l l .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Le t  us  ta lk  about  the  f i rs t  occas ion  you 

went  there .   D id  you go there  a lone? 

MR LE ROUX:    No,  no ,  I  went  there  and then R ichard  was 

there  as  we l l .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Mr  R ichard  le  Roux?  

MR LE ROUX:    Yes,  yes .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    D id  he  a r r i ve  a t  the  premises f i rs t  so  

tha t  when you ar r i ved,  he  was a l ready ins ide?  

MR LE ROUX:    Yes,  s i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    How d id  –  what  happened before  you  

entered,  d id  you hoot  on  tha t  day,  d id  you not  hoot  o r  what  
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happened?  Te l l  me about  tha t .  

MR LE ROUX:    No,  no ,  i t  was open and then I  saw h im 

s tand ing  ins ide  o f  the  main  ga te .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Mr  R ichard  le  Roux was s tand ing  on the  

ins ide  o f  the  ga te? 

MR LE ROUX:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    So  he was –  so  he  wou ld  have spoken to  

the  guard  to  say he  must  le t  you i n .  

MR LE ROUX:    I  can  get  in ,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  you say as  you approached the  ga te  10 

the  ga te  was a l ready open or  i t  opened as  you were  

approach ing?  

MR LE ROUX:    I t  was open,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes bu t  Mr  l e  Roux was there  and the  

guard  was there .  

MR LE ROUX:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And then you jus t  went  in .  

MR LE ROUX:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .   Now on the  subsequent  occas ion  

when you came a f te r  tha t  w i thout  Mr  le  Roux be ing  there  –  20 

because I  take  i t  there  were  occas ions when you  came 

wi thout  Mr  le  Roux,  i s  tha t  r igh t?  

MR LE ROUX:    Yes,  yes ,  there  was.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And do you remember  whethe r  the  f i rs t  

o r  second occas ion  you went  to  the  p remises Mr  le  Roux  
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was there  or  no t?  

MR LE ROUX:    No,  I  am not  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Or  you cannot  remember?  

MR LE ROUX:    I  am not  sure ,  no .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  bu t  when you came a f te r  tha t  f i rs t  

occas ion  w i thout  Mr  le  Roux be ing  the re ,  d id  the  guards 

jus t  open to  you a f te r  ident i f y ing  your  car?  

MR LE ROUX:    Yes,  yes ,  he  d id .  

CHAIRPERSON:    D id  you a lways go there  in  the  same 

car?  10 

MR LE ROUX:    Yes,  I  d id .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay.   Mr  Notshe?  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Thank you,  Cha i r.   Now,  Mr  le  Roux,  

can you a lso  dea l  w i th  someth ing  here .   On T13  page 205,  

tha t  i s  the  s ta tement ,  parag raph 16,  you say,  I  am read ing  

f rom your  s ta tement  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  am sor ry,  where?  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    On T13,  CR05,  Cha i rperson,  

parag raph 16 o f  the  w i tness ’s  s ta tement .  

CHAIRPERSON:    H is  a f f idav i t ,  pa rag raph 16.   Yes,  okay.  20 

ADV NOTSHE SC:    H is  a f f idav i t .   You say the re :  

“On an occas ion  dur ing  2017 or  2018 I  was aga in  

contac ted ,  Mr  van B i l jon ,  to  go  to  p remises s i tua ted  

in  B louberg  S t ree t  where  I  was to  meet  Mr  le  Roux. ”  

Now dur ing  th is  ev idence th is  morn ing ,  you sa id  you f i rs t  
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went  there  in  2014.   Can you exp la in  th is?  

MR LE ROUX:    Un less  i t  i s  jus t  –  i t  m igh t  have been a f te r  

the  in i t ia l  v is i t  fo r  some ext ra  work .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    I  beg your  pardon?  

MR LE ROUX:    In  my a f f idav i t  i t  was a f te r  we wen t  there 

fo r  the  f i rs t  t ime.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    So ,  the  f i rs t  t ime was 2014?  

MR LE ROUX:    Yes,  yes .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    And thereaf te r  you went  in  2017 and 

2018?  10 

MR LE ROUX:    Yes,  yes .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Now whi ls t  we  are  on  your  a f f idav i t ,  so  

you –  or  be fore  we go there ,  i s  i t  cor rec t  tha t  a f te r  you  

have spoken to  the  invest iga tors  you were  then shown 

some p ic tu res ,  photos .   You were  shown some photos .  

MR LE ROUX:    Yes,  yes .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Can you tu rn  to  page 12 o f  your  –  i t  is  

ca l led  CR2 and i t  i s  on  page 12,  Cha i rperson.   

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    There  is  a  p i c tu re  there  o f  –  you were  20 

shown the  p i c tu re?  

MR LE ROUX:    Yes,  yes ,  I  was.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Cha i rperson ,  can I  jus t  pause there  

jus t  to  exp la in  th is .   These were  taken by  and shown to  the  

w i tness by  Mr  Groenewald .   We have h is  s ta tement  and he 
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i s  a lso  phys i ca l l y  ind isposed but  th is  w i tness I  wou ld  want  

to  d iscuss Mr  Groenewald ’s  s ta tement  w i th  h im.   

CHAIRPERSON:    R igh t .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Te l l ,  me what  is  dep ic ted  in  the  p ic tu re  

on  the  photo?   

MR LE ROUX:    I t  i s  the  house tha t  we worked a t .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    I  see .   Now on the  photo  we see -   

CR12 –  we see someth ing  l i ke  there  i s  someth ing  l i ke   a  

ga te ,  what  –  i s  the  wooden tha t ,  can you see?  

MR LE ROUX:    Yes,  yes ,  on  the  le f t  hand there .  10 

ADV NOTSHE SC:    And then you see a  roo f  as  you  look a t  

i t ,  where  the  ga tes ,  what  roo f  i s  tha t?  

MR LE ROUX:    On tha t  roo f  beh ind  the  ga te  i s  the  guard  

room.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Now i f  you  go to  –  can you go to  

CR14,  what  i s  dep ic ted  on  tha t  p ic tu re?  

MR LE ROUX:    I t  i s  a lso  tha t  ga te  a t  tha t  guard  room.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    In  the…? 

MR LE ROUX:    The guard  room.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    The guard  room? 20 

MR LE ROUX:    And the  ga te ,  yes .    

CHAIRPERSON:    I  am sor ry,  Mr  Notshe,  why does i t  look  

l i ke  these annexures are  no t  marked?  You see there  is  a  –  

I  see tha t  i s  annexure  CLR2 but  i t  i s  much bet te r  i f  on  the  

ac tua l  photog raph there  is  a lso  –  i t  i s  marked o therwise 
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wh i le  you a re  look ing  a t  the  pa rag raph and you say  by  the  

way wh ich  annexure  is  th is ,  then you go to…[ in tervenes]  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    I  see  th is .  

CHAIRPERSON:    …need to  go  back a  few pages.   Okay,  

bu t  i t  i s  annexure  CLR2 and annexure  CLR3.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  bu t  you a re  dea l ing  w i th  CLR2,  i s  

tha t  r igh t?  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    I  am dea l ing  aga in  w i th  CRL2 and then 

…[ in tervenes]  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    You went  to  …[ in tervenes]  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    I  moved to  CRL3 now.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t .   

ADV NOTSHE SC:    My ch i ld ren  w i l l  be  proud o f  me,  I  

p ronounced th ree  as  they a lways cor rec t ,  me not  t ree ,  I  

have managed to  pronounce i t  p roper ly,  th ree .  

CHAIRPERSON:    No,  I  th ink  the re  are  many peop le  who  

pronounce th ree  d i f fe ren t ly.   

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  what  i s  the  po in t  tha t  was made 20 

w i th  re ference to  CRL2?  Wi th  the  ga te?  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Yes,  i s  the  ga te  and the  guardhouse,  

the  roo f  o f  the  guardhouse.   

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l ,  now Mr  le  Roux,  d id  you say tha t  

be fore  depos ing  to  your  a f f idav i t  in  March you were  shown 
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th is  p ic tu re?  

MR LE ROUX:    Yes,  yes ,  tha t  i s  r igh t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    And you say the  roo f  tha t  one can see  

above the  wa l l ,  the  per imeter  wa l l  i s  the  guardhouse .  

MR LE ROUX:    I t  i s ,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  in  your  a f f idav i t  as  we l l  as  in  the 

a f f idav i t  o f  Mr  Agr izz i ,  i f  I  remember  cor rec t l y,  bo th  o f  you 

say tha t  the  guardhouse is  to  the  le f t  o f  the  ga te ,  i s  i t  no t?  

MR LE ROUX:    I t  i s .  

CHAIRPERSON:    That  does not  look  me to  be  to  the  le f t  o f  10 

the  ga te .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Cha i r,  i f  I  may …[ in tervenes]  

MR LE ROUX:    I t  i s  the  ang le  tha t  the  p ic tu re  was taken.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l ,  bu t  do  you agree w i th  me tha t  

when you look  a t  the  s t ruc tu re  tha t  you say is  the  

guardhouse,  tha t  does not  look  to  be  to  the  le f t  o f  the  ga te  

or  a re  you say ing  tha t  i t  i s  on  the  le f t  to  the  ga te  or  a re  

you say ing  i t  i s  on  the  le f t  to  the  ga te?  

MR LE ROUX:    I t  i s  on  the  le f t ,  yes .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Cha i r,  can  Mr  le  Roux take  the  20 

Cha i rperson to  CLR3? 

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   I  have the  same prob lem on CRL3.    

As  I  see i t ,  i t  seems to  me tha t  the  main  ga te  tha t  the  

guardhouse is  d i rec t l y  –  i f  you  get  in to  the  ga te  you wou ld  

go  –  and you d id  no t  tu rn  r igh t  o r  le f t  w i th  the  ca r,  you 
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wou ld  go  h i t  the  s t ruc ture  and tha t  wou ld  i t  no t  be  le f t  o f  

the  …[ in tervenes]  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Cha i r,  I  th ink  the  photographer  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    I t  d id  no t  come out  c lear l y  as  –  can I  

c la r i f y  tha t  w i th  the  w i tness,  the  next  s tep  about  the  v is i t?  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    The w i tness  w i l l  con f i rm and  I  do  no t  

want  to  tes t i f y  f rom the  ba r,  bu t  …[ in tervenes]  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  no ,  no ,  tha t  i s  f ine .   You can ask  

h im quest ions wh ich  w i l l  c la r i f y  th i s ,  i f  poss ib le .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    You know,  th is  th ing  becomes impor tan t .   

I  hope tha t  the  agreement  tha t  was s igned a l so  ind ica tes  

wh ich  s ide  o f  the  ga te  the  guardhouse is  because i t  i s  

impor tan t .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Yes.   Mr  le  Roux,  i t  i s  your  CLR3,  the  

p ic tu res .  

MR LE ROUX:    Yes,  s i r.  20 

ADV NOTSHE SC:    And you were  present  yes terday when  

you went  to  the  house.  

MR LE ROUX:    Yes,  yes ,  I  was.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Now in  re la t ion  to  the  ga te  when you  

ente r,  in  re la t ion  to  the  person  enter ing  the  premises,  
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where   on  wh ich  s ide  w i l l  be  the  –  was the  guardhouse  

yesterday?  

MR LE ROUX:    On the  le f t .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    And wh i ls t  we are  on  tha t ,  can I  take  

you,  Cha i r,  to  CLR –  I  th ink  now we shou ld  ca l l  th is  T16.   

We have got  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    EXHIBIT T. . .?  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    We have go t  T13,  T14,  T15 and then  

shou ld  be  T16.   That  w i l l  be  …[ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    T15,  tha t  i s  Mr  Ren ier  van B i l jon .  10 

ADV NOTSHE SC:    T15 is  Mr  van B i l jon .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Then can we take i t  to  T16?  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  do  no t  th ink  we have T16.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    I f  we take  i t  as  T14 and i t  was marked 

–  i t  was marked as  CLR T13,  CLRL15.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  what  I  am say ing  is  I  do  no t  th ink  

there  i s  one tha t  we have admi t ted  and marked as  T16.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Yes.   Not  ye t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  so  what  i s  the  document  you want  20 

me to  go  to?  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    I t  i s  ca l led  the  memo on inspect ion  i n  

loco  Char l  le  Roux.  

CHAIRPERSON:    What  page is  i t?  

MR LE ROUX:    I t  i s  on  CLR15.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    One f i ve?  

MR LE ROUX:    One f i ve .   

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    I s  the  Cha i rpe rson w i th  me?  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  am sor ry,  th is  i s  confus ing .   Okay,  ja ,  I  

have got  the  memo on page 15.   Yes?  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Now,  Mr  le  Roux,  a re  you on there?  

MR LE ROUX:    Yes,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Do you want  us  to  admi t  th is  memo? 

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Th i s  memo as EXHIBIT T16 and th is ,  10 

Cha i rperson,  i s  handed up by  agreement  be tween  the  

par t ies .  

CHAIRPERSON:    I t  shou ld  no t  be  T –  i f  i t  i s  here  a t  the 

beg inn ing  maybe  we shou ld  make  i t  what ,  EXHIBIT T12?   

I s  there  EXHIB IT T12 in  ano ther  work  s t ream o r  

someth ing?  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    There  is  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  th ink  the  memo shou ld  come a t  the  

end,  the  ag reement  o f  what  was seen yesterday bu t  i f  you  

a l ready have put  i t  here  in  the  f ron t . . .  20 

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Cha i rperson ,  we can change  tha t ,  in  

te rms o f  s lo t t ing  i t  in .   I f  the  Cha i r ,  w i th  your  perm iss ion ,  

you can a l low us  to  ca l l  i t  T16 and  then i t  can be ar ranged  

tha t  i t  i s  a t  the  end o f  Mr  Char l  le  Roux ’s  ev idence.   

Cha i rperson,  the re  i s  a  T12 wh ich  is  the  a f f idav i t  o f  
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R ichard  le  Roux.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  you suggest  tha t  we adm i t  i t  as  

EXHIBIT what?  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    T16.  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m? 

ADV NOTSHE SC:    T  one s i x .  

CHAIRPERSON:    EXHIBIT T one s ix .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  w i l l  wr i te  EXHIBIT T16 a t  page 15 a t  

the  top .   Okay,  yes ,  so  the  memo on the  inspect ion  i n  loco  10 

w i l l  be  admi t ted  as  EXHIBIT T16.  

MEMO ON INSPECTION IN LOCO CHARL LE ROUX 

HANDED IN AS T16  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    As i t  p leases you,  Cha i r.   Cha i r,  the 

agreement  was tha t  I  wou ld  read th is  in to  the  record .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Bu t  w i th  your  leave I  w i l l  read i t  and 

then but  in  con junct ion  o f  the  ev idence o f  the  w i tness.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l ,  you  may –  you can jus t  read the  

who le  o f  the  memo.  20 

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And then the  w i tness can then jus t  

conf i rm because i t  i s  agreed,  i t  i s  someth ing  tha t  has been  

agreed.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Yes.   Mr  le  Roux,  I  am go ing  to  -  do  
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you  have the  memorandum of  …[ in tervenes]  

MR LE ROUX:    Yes,  yes ,  I  have i t .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    L i s ten  ca re fu l l y,  I  am go ing  to  read i t  

in to  the  record .   Jus t  l i s ten  ca re fu l l y  and then – so  tha t  you  

conf i rm or  cor rec t  whatever  you want  to  cor rec t .  

MR LE ROUX:    Okay.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Now the  memorandum I  am read ing  

re la te  to :  

“The po in t ing  ou t / inspect ion  i n  loco  by  Char l  l e  

Roux.   Ind i v idua ls  p resent ,  the  w i tness Char l  Le  10 

Roux,  the  Commiss ioner  s ta f f  Adv  Viwe Notshe,  Mr  

A lan  N ixon,  Mr  Tshepo Maleko,  Ms Ref i loe  Mole fe  

and then fo r  Mrs  Mokonyane,  representa t i ves  is  Adv  

L Hodes and Mr  G Madlanga.  

1 .  Po in ted  by  w i tness is  a  h igh  fence and a  

guardhouse to  the  le f t  s ide  a t  the  en t rance and  

the  photographs obta ined as  annexures A . ” ’  

Cha i r,  tha t  photograph A is  on  page –  i t  w i l l  be  on  page   

16 .4 .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  20 

ADV NOTSHE SC:    And then:  

“2 .  Genera tors  s i tua ted  beh ind  the  ga rage in  a 

cage where  the  w i res  fed  th rough the  wa l l  

in to  the  garage where  they were  connected  

to  the  cont ro l  pane l . ”  
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And tha t  photog raph o f  the  genera tor  i s  on  B wh ich  is  16 .6 ,  

Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    And over  the  page i t  i s :  

“L igh ts  f i t ted  on  the . . . ”  

 Cha i r,  the  pane l  re fe r red  to ,  you w i l l  see  the  pane l  

re fe r red  to  on  pa ragraph 3  as  B ,  i t  –  a lso  i t  goes over  the  

page to  16 .7 ,  i s  the  pane l .   And then ove r  the  page  o f  the  

memorandum,  Cha i r,  i t  i s :  

“L igh ts  f i t ted  the s ide  o f  the  wa l ls  the  e i ther  s ides  10 

o f  the  s ta i rs  tha t  was rep laced. ”  

And on 16.9 ,  those were  the  l igh ts  and 16.10  is  the  

s ta i rcase.   And then fo r  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Hang on one second,  can I  take  you 

back,  I  th ink  you –  what  i s  tha t  16 .6?   I s  tha t  the  

genera tor?  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Cha i r,  jus t  bear  w i th  me? 

CHAIRPERSON:    I  th ink  you have  le f t  me beh ind .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    16 .6  i s  the  genera to r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  20 

ADV NOTSHE SC:    And then i t  i s  connected w i th16.7 ,  

Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Yes.   Cha i r,  i f  you  were  to  go  back,  

Cha i r,  to  16 .6  you w i l l  see  next  to  the  genera to r  there  a re  
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w i res  wh ich  go  to  in to  the  ground.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    And the  w i tness was say ing  those 

w i res  wou ld  then connect  to  16 .7 ,  the  pane l  on  16 .7 .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  okay.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    And then 16.9  are  the  l igh ts  tha t  were  

repa i red  on  the  s ta i rcase and 16.10 is  the  same s ta i rcase  

where  the  l igh ts  were  repa i red .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    And then a t  paragraph on  16.1  i s  10 

repa i rs  on  the  founta in  s i tua ted  in  the  corne r,  the  w i tness  

s ta ted  I  reca l l  tha t  we had to  f i t  a  smal l  pump to the 

founta in  in  o rde r  to  pump the  wate r  ou t  and I  th ink  I  

repa i red  some l i gh ts  a t  i t  o r  in  the  founta in .  That  w i l l  be 

found a t  16 .12 .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Cha i r  can you  ignore  the  co lou r  o f  the  

wate r  and the  –  i t s  cond i t ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    And then paragraph 5  ga rage o r  where  20 

Aust in  Mar t in  va le t  covered,  where  the  t rampol ine  was  

parked and 16.14 .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    And then 6  i s  o ther  fea tures ,  o ther  

fea tures  jus t  iden t i f ied  or  po in ted  out  wh i ls t  we were  there ,  



06 JULY 2020 – DAY 230 
 

Page 71 of 90 
 

i t  i s  the  l igh ts  in  the  covered pat io  were  no t  covered when 

the  work  was done.   The w i tness wh i l s t  we were  there  

Cha i rperson,  he  po in ted  out  l igh t s  in  the  pa t io  and the  

l igh ts  were ,  he  says bu t  the  pa t io  a t  tha t  s tage was not  

covered,  whereas  when we were  there  i t  was covered.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Mmm.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Yes,  Cha i r  you  w i l l  no t ice  a lso ,  I  d idn ’ t  

you to  th is ,  a t  16 .15  there  is  the  l i f ted  cover  o f  the  ca r  

showing the  Aust in  Mar t in  emb lem,  by  agreement  the  

reg i s t ra t ion  was  redacted,  i t  has  a  reg is t ra t ion  bu t  we 10 

agreed fo r  secur i t y  reasons tha t  we  w i l l  take  i t  ou t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Mr  Le  Roux you heard  me read ing  

th rough a l l  th is ,  is  th is  cor rec t ,  i s  th is  what  happened when  

we were  there?  

MR LE ROUX:    Yes,  yes  i t  i s .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    And then is  i t  in  l ine  w i th  the  a f f idav i t  

and the  ev idence you gave today?  

MR LE ROUX:    Yes.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Cha i rperson tha t  i s  the  ev idence o f  Mr  20 

Le Roux.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  what  i s  a t  page 16.17?   Is  tha t  a  

cer ta in  l ine  or  an  X .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Sor ry  Cha i r  I  w i l l  ge t  there .   16 .7  i t  i s  

what  i s  wr i t ten ,  i t  i s  a  manuscr ip t  no te  o f  the  add i t iona l  
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observa t ion  where  he  says on  paragraph,  in  paragraph 6  o f  

the  memo he says –  Cha i r  jus t  bear  w i th  me.   Cha i r  i t  i s  

jus t  I  can ’ t  read the  –  there  is  a  word  I  can ’ t  read,  oh  i t  i s  

ce i l ing .   I t  i s  the  ce i l ing  l igh t  in  the  covered pat io .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Which  was not  covered when the  work 

was done.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    And then you w i l l  see  tha t  i s  the  –  tha t  

and on 16.8  aga in  i t  i s  the  ce i l ing ,  the  l igh ts  on  the  ce i l ing .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  okay.    Yes cont inue.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Mr  Le  Roux do you conf i rm the 

contents  o f  you r  s ta tement?  

MR LE ROUX:    Yes,  yes  I  do .  

CHAIRPERSON:    From the  road i f  somebody is  s tand ing  

on the  road next  to  th is  par t i cu la r  res idence or  i s  pass ing  

wou ld  they be  ab le  to  te l l  whether  the  guardhouse is  to  the 

le f t  o f  the  ga te?   So somebody who has never  gone in to  

the  premises can they te l l?  

MR LE ROUX:    Yes,  yes  they can.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    You can see f rom outs ide?  

MR LE ROUX:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    That  i t  i s  to  the  le f t  o f  the  ga te?  

MR LE ROUX:    Yes you can.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  wou ld  you know i t  i s  a  guardhouse,  
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wou ld  somebody know tha t  i t  i s  a  guardhouse?  

MR LE ROUX:    I  am not  sure .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  ja ,  there  is  no th ing  tha t  can te l l  you  

f rom outs ide?  

MR LE ROUX:   No.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  now Mr  Agr izz i  descr ibed some o f  

the  fea tures  in  h is  a f f idav i t  o f  the  house.   One,  he  sa id  tha t  

the  guardhouse i s  to  the  le f t  o f  the  ga te ,  wh ich  i s  the  same 

th ing  tha t  you have sa id  as  we l l  bu t  he  ment ioned o ther  

fea tures  tha t  I  want  to  see whether  you are  ab le ,  whethe r  10 

you d id  no t ice  those fea tures .    Mr  Agr i zz i  says  in  h is  

a f f idav i t  deposed  to  on  the  15 t h  o f  November  2019 in  wh ich  

he  was respond ing  I  th ink  to  the  a f f idav i t  –  oh  no  I  th ink  he  

was dea l ing  w i th  quest ions tha t  had been posed  by  me 

dur ing  the  hear ing  about  fea tures  o f  the  house  as  he  

reca l led  them.    

 He says in  paragraph 41 or  in  5 :  

“ I  am in  a  pos i t ion  to  ident i f y  the  premises.  When I  

f i rs t  v is i ted  together  w i th  the  la te  Gav in  Watson the  

guardhouse was a  wood s t ruc ture  on  the  le f t  as  you  20 

entered the  premises.   Th is  was la te r  renovated in to  

a  permanent  s t ruc ture  as  we l l . ”  

When you went  to  the  premises was the  s t ruc tu re  a  wooden 

s t ruc ture  or  was  i t  a l ready a  guardhouse as  you  saw i t  

yes terday?  
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MR LE ROUX:   I t  was bu i l t  l i ke  i t  was yeste rday.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I t  was as  i t  was yesterday?  

MR LE ROUX:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    When you went  there  fo r  the  f i rs t  t ime i t  

was not  a  wood s t ruc ture .    

MR LE ROUX:     No,  no .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay and then he says fu r the r  there  are  

two garages and ad jacent  to  the  two garages is  a 

genera tor  room 

MR LE ROUX:    Yes.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    I s  tha t  someth ing  you d id  see prev ious l y 

and,  in  the  house ,  o r  maybe a lso  yeste rday?  

MR LE ROUX:    Yes,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON:    There  a re  two garages?  

MR LE ROUX:    I  th ink  there  is  more  than –  there ’s  th ree  

garages the re .  

CHAIRPERSON:    There  a re  th ree  garages,  no t  two? 

MR LE ROUX:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay and he says ad jacent  to  the  two  

garages is  a  genera tor  room wi th  an  au to  swi tch  20 

mechan ism.  

MR LE ROUX:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Which  the  Bosasa cont rac tors  app l ied ,  

the  genera tor  was on the  ou ts ide .  

MR LE ROUX:    Yes.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    A re  you ab le  to  conf i rm whethe r  h is  –  

what  he  is  say ing  is  t rue  or  no t?  

MR LE ROUX:    I t  i s  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON:    I t  i s  t rue?  

MR LE ROUX:    I t  i s  t rue  ja .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay and you must  te l l  me whe ther  you  

know th is  o r  you don ’ t  know th is ,  he  says in  paragraph  

41.6 :  

“ In  o rder  to  en ter  the  house,  there  are  a  few s teps  

and the  f i rs t  room on the  r igh t  upon enter ing  is  Mr  10 

Mokonyane ’s ,  wh ich  is  adorned w i th  ANC rega l ia  

and heads f rom Lesotho. ”  

The ANC rega l ia  and the  heads f rom Lesotho you might  o r  

m ight  no t  have not iced,  I  don ’ t  know,  bu t  he  says the  f i rs t  

room,  he  says there  a re  a  few s teps when you en ter  the  

house.   He says i n  o rder  to  en ter  the  house there  are  a  few 

s teps and the  f i rs t  room on the  r i gh t  upon ente r ing  is  Ms 

Mokonyane ’s  s tudy.   Do you know anyth ing  about  the  s teps  

tha t  a re  there ,  the  few s teps tha t  you have to  use to  ge t  to  

the  house,  in to  the  house?  20 

MR LE ROUX:    Yes,  i s  tha t  where  we put  the  l igh ts ,  on  

those s ta i r s?  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   And he says the  f i rs t  room on the  

r igh t  a f te r  you have ente red the  house is  Ms Mokonyane ’s  

s tudy.   Now you might  o r  m ight  no t  know whether  tha t  room 
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i s  a  s tudy or  no t ,  bu t  there  is  a  room tha t  you see on the  

r igh t  hand s ide  as  you ente r  the  house?  

MR LE ROUX:    I  have never  worked ins ide  the  house.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ins ide ,  so  you don ’ t  know tha t  pa r t?  

MR LE ROUX:    I  don ’ t  know.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  okay  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Can I  jus t  c la r i f y  one issue.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  p lease yes.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Before  the  –  Mr  Le  Roux jus t  exp la in  

to  the  Cha i rpe rson about  when you say there  a re  th ree  10 

garages,  a re  they se l f - s tand ing  garages or  a re  they –  i s  i t  

one b ig  s t ruc ture  w i th  doors?  

MR LE ROUX:    Yes,  yes  i t  i s  one w i th  mul t ip le  doors  and  

there  i s  tha t  one smal l  one next  to  i t  w i th  the  genera l  pane l  

there .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.   You say they are  no t  separa te  

s tanda lone garages?  

MR LE ROUX:    Yes,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  i s  i t  one garage wh ich  can take  

two ca rs ,  maybe w i th  some d i v ide r  o r  maybe  w i thout  20 

d iv ider  bu t  can take  two ca rs  o r  i t  can  take  th ree  ca rs .  

MR LE ROUX:   Yes i t  i s  one b ig  one,  i t  can  take  th ree  

cars .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   So –  bu t  i t  i s  one garage?  

MR LE ROUX:   Yes.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  i t  can  take  th ree  ca rs .  

MR LE ROUX:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  so  i t  i s  no t  two separa te  ga rages.  

MR LE ROUX:    No.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    And then can you jus t  –  Mr  Le  Roux  

can you jus t  take  the  Commiss ion  to  –  Cha i r  can I  take  you  

to  TS16 page 16.14,  where  there  is  a  car  covered.   A re  you 

there?  

MR LE ROUX:    Yes I  am there .  10 

ADV NOTSHE SC:    I s  when you  ta lk  about  the  spaces do  

you re fer  to  someth ing  l i ke  what  we see on 16.14? 

MR LE ROUX:    Yes,  yes .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Where  there  is  a  car  parked and then 

there  is  a  p i l la r  and then there  seems to  be  a  door  next  to  

the  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR LE ROUX:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay you w i l l  jus t  need to  go  th rough Mr  

Agr izz i ’s  fea tures  tha t  he  ident i f ies .   We know tha t  the  

guardhouse he is  conf i rm ing.   20 

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  you w i l l  jus t  need to  see the  o ther  

fea tures  tha t  Mr  Agr izz i  ident i f ies  in  one or  more  o f  h is  

a f f idav i t s ,  see what  has been conf i rmed by  th is  w i tness,  

what  has no t  been conf i rmed by  th is  w i tness or  what  has 
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been conf i rmed by  the  agreement  be tween the  par t ies  and  

to  the  ex ten t  tha t  there  may be fea tures  tha t  have not  been 

conf i rmed by  th is  w i tness tha t  Mr  Agr izz i  ta lked about  Mr  

Agr izz i  must  be  in te rv iewed to  –  in  regard  to  tha t  and to  

the  ex ten t  tha t  there  may be  a  need fo r  c la r i f i ca t ion  

because he ta lks  about  two garages,  whether  –  exact ly  

what  he  means when he says two ga rages,  he  must  be  

in te rv iewed so  tha t  he  can say –  exp la in  what  he  means by  

two ga rages.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Yes.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    And then I  th ink  you can then approach 

Ms Mokonyane ’s  lawyers  to  see whether  the re  can be any 

agreement  whether  the  f i x tu res  tha t  have not  been  

conf i rmed by  th is  w i tness wh ich  are  in  Mr  Agr i zz i ’s  a f f idav i t  

whethe r  they are  in  a  pos i t ion  to  conf i rm them or  i f  they  do  

not  conf i rm them there  may be a  need fo r  another  v is i t  to  

conf i rm those because they may be  impor tan t .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:   Cha i r  as  fa r  as  I  can read the  a f f idav i t  

o f  Mr  Agr izz i  the  on ly  i ssue tha t  the  w i tness is  ab le  to  

conf i rm is  the  issue tha t  the  Cha i r  has dea l t  w i th  tha t  the  20 

s ta i rcase and the  genera to r  ou ts ide  and then you touched  

on the  issue o f  the  garages.   Other  than tha t ,  the  w i tness 

is  unab le  to  because –  he  is  unab le  to  conf i rm because 

then Mr  Agr i zz i  go  to  ins ide  the  house and then dea l  w i th  

the  . . . [ in te rvenes]   
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CHAIRPERSON:    Yes so  bu t  look  a t  a l  Agr izz i ’s  ev idence  

because he might  have dea l t  w i th  some fea tures  in  a 

d i f fe ren t  a f f idav i t .   He submi t ted  two or  th ree  a f f idav i t s .    

You don ’ t  have to  i t  now but  you can do i t  la te r  to  ident i f y  

those so  tha t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Cha i r  in  o rder  to  save our  t ime I  am 

a lmost  done w i th  the  w i tness.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Can I  ask  fo r  a  shor t  ad jou rnment?  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  10 

ADV NOTSHE SC:    A shor t  ad jou rnment  jus t  to  run  

th rough,  I  am a lso  th ink ing  o f  look ing  a lso  to  Mr  R ichard  Le  

Roux ’s  s ta tement  to  see what  the  w i tness can conf i rm f rom 

Mr  R ichard  Le  Roux in  te rms o f  the  fea tures .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l  when I  ad journ ,  I  want  to  ad journ  

fo r  the  day.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    For  the  day?  

CHAIRPERSON:    Because we don ’ t  have another  w i tness.    

Wel l  your  jun io r  m ight  have taken  note  o f  what  has been 

conf i rmed by  the  w i tness and what  has no t  been conf i rmed  20 

but  he  has conf i rmed what  i s  in  the  agreement ,  he  has  

conf i rmed I  th ink  eve ry th ing  tha t  i s  in  h is  a f f idav i t .    Your  

a f f idav i t  Mr  Le  Roux,  you have looked a t  i t  aga in  maybe  

yesterday,  recent ly,  your  a f f idav i t  tha t  you s igned in  March,  

d id  you look a t  i t  yes terday aga in  to  re f resh your  memory?  
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MR LE ROUX:    Yes Cha i rpe rson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  do  you conf i rm tha t  what  you sa id  

there  i s  cor rec t?  

MR LE ROUX:    Yes i t  i s .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  w i th  regard  to  the  co lour  o f  the  ca r,  

do  you want  to  s t i ck  to  the  co lour  tha t  you wro te  as  b lack  

or  dark  b lue  or  a re  you say ing  no  you th ink  i t  was wh i te  o r  

a re  you say ing  you are  no t  sure  what  co lou r  i t  was,  you 

thought  i t  was b lack  or  b lue  bu t  you have seen a  wh i te  

one,  you are  no t  sure  bu t  what  you are  su re  about  i s  tha t  i t  10 

an  Aust in  Mar t in .  

MR LE ROUX:    An  Aust in  Mar t in  yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay a l r igh t .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Cha i r  be fore  we leave the  w i tness w i th  

your  leave can I  re fe r  the  Cha i r  to  you w i l l  see  on page 13,  

13  po in t  –  T13,  13  page CR07 and  there  are  two premises  

re fer red  to  there ,  paragraph E  and  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Sor ry  what  page? 

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Page 7 ,  T13 7  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Seven?  20 

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Zero  07 ,  CR07,  I  hope the  Pres ident  

doesn ’ t  take  o f fence o f  these number ings w i th  CR.  

CHAIRPERSON:    ( laugh ing)  yes?  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Cha i r  those res idences work  was done  

there  bu t  our  invest iga t ions is  we  f ind  i t  i s  no t  re levant  to  
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your  enqu i ry.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    So  I  w i l l  no t  lead ev idence on those  

res idences.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  no  tha t ’s  f ine .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Cha i r  I  have  confer red  w i th  my jun io r  

we cou ldn ’ t  f ind  anyth ing  as  f rom Agr izz i ’s  ev idence tha t  

can be conf i rmed  by  th is  w i tness.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Ne i ther  a lso  I  have got  Le  Roux,  10 

R ichard  Le  Roux ,  does not  re fe r  to  fea tures  tha t  can be 

conf i rmed by  th is ,  the  on ly  th ing  tha t  R ichard  Le  Roux is  to  

conf i rm the  house but  no t  fea tures .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  ja .   Wel l  the  s ta i r s  ins ide  the  house 

is  one o f  the  th ings tha t  Mr  Agr izz i  ta l ks  about  in  h is  

a f f idav i t .   He says there  I  thought  he  sa id  they lead up to  

Ms Mokonyane ’s  s tudy upsta i r s  bu t  I  see in  th is  a f f idav i t  he  

ta lks  about  the  s tudy be ing  on the  r igh t  hand s ide  as  you 

enter  i f  I  am not  m is taken.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Yes.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    So  the  agreement  tha t  was s igned  

between yourse l ves and Ms Mokonyane ’s  a f f idav i t  does i t  

dea l  w i th  those o r  does i t  no t?  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    No Judge i t  does not ,  i t  doesn ’ t  bu t  

Cha i r  . . . [ in te rvenes]   
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CHAIRPERSON:    So  tha t  i s  one o f  the  th ings tha t  must  be  

pursued w i th  regard  to  Mr  Agr i zz i  and a l so  to  check 

whethe r  there  can be agreement  f rom Ms Mokonyane ’s  

lawyers  tha t  there  are  such s ta i rs  ins ide  the  house.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Yes,  w i th  the  –  I  have been get t ing  

coopera t ion  f rom Ms Mokonyane ’s  lawyers ,  I  am sure  there  

w i l l  be  some d iscuss ion  about  tha t  and then we w i l l  see  

what  coopera t ion  we get  and then we w i l l  see  what  

agreement  can be reached.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  now you know we –  Mr  Le  Roux 10 

here  in  h i s  a f f idav i t  sa id  the  Aust in  Mar t in  was dark  b lue  or  

b lack  bu t  he  has sa id  tha t  the  one tha t  he  saw yeste rday in  

the  house is  wh i te .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    There  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Cha i r  on  tha t  we w i l l  –  I  have got  

in fo rmat ion  as  I  was on my fee t  bu t  I  want  to  p resent  i t  to  

you in  a  presentab le  way.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  yes ,  there  i s  –  I  don ’ t  know whethe r  

you have got  here  the  –  I  don ’ t  know whethe r  i t  i s  a t tached  20 

to  Mr  Groenewald ’s  a f f idav i t  bu t  there  is  a  –  the  

invest iga to rs  d id  approach the  Depar tment  o f  Transpor t  

and they ob ta ined the  reg i s t ra t ion  there  and I  th ink  there  

was a  co lou r  g iven.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Yes.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  so  I  though t  tha t  m ight  reso lve  the  

issue.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I s  tha t  what  you  are  ta lk ing  about?  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    That  i s  wha t  I  am ta lk ing  about  and 

Cha i r  w i th  your  leave can I  dea l  w i th  tha t  i ssue la te r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja  okay.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    I t  w i l l  then,  i t  m igh t  exp la in  the  

s i tua t ion  we have .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  10 

ADV NOTSHE SC:    The on ly  reason I  don ’ t  want  to  p lace  

i t  be fore  you,  I  jus t  want  to  p lace  i t  in  a  p resentab le  

manner.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    And a  comple te  p ic tu re  regard ing  tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  then we . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV NOTSHE SC:    There  is  a  NATIS  reg is t ra t ion  wh ich  

w i l l  g ive  us  the  co lou r  and o ther  i ssues about  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay.    We wi l l  have to  dea l  w i th  

tha t  as  soon as  poss ib le .  20 

ADV NOTSHE SC:    No we w i l l .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay,  a l r igh t .   Thank you  Mr  Le  

Roux fo r  coming to  g ive  ev idence,  we apprec ia te  tha t  these 

are  mat te rs  tha t  happened many  years  ago but  we are  

gra te fu l  tha t  you came to  us  as  the  Commiss ion .  
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MR LE ROUX:  No prob lem.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  i f  the  need ar i ses  fo r  the  

Commiss ion  to  ask  you to  come back we w i l l  ask  you to 

come back and the  we w i l l  take  i t  f rom there .    But  then fo r  

the  day we are  go ing  to  ad jou rn  or  do  you s t i l l  have 

someth ing?  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Yes,  I  have jus t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    A re  we go ing  to  s i t  tomor row and on  

Wednesday isn ’ t  i t?  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Yes.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    On Bosasa mat te rs ,  a re  we s t i l l  w i th  

tha t?  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    What  we –  be fore  we even go there  

Cha i r,  I  wanted to  dea l  w i th  now – can he be excused?  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes you a re  excused Mr  Le  Roux,  you 

may go.  

MR LE ROUX:    Okay,  thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Thank you.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Cha i r  I  have in  the  bund le  an  a f f idav i t  

o f  Mr  L ione l  Groenewald ,  he  is  par t  o f  the  invest iga t ion  20 

team.   The a f f idav i t  i t  dea ls  w i th  the  invest iga t ion  he  has 

done,  the  –  he  a lso  dea ls  w i th  the  ev idence o f  the  w i tness  

jus t  about  the  p ic tu re  tha t  he  saw.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Can I  jus t  say  the  invest iga to rs  o f  the  

Commiss ion  re la t ing  to  Bosasa i f  one o f  them is  here  they  
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shou ld  no t  leave because a f te r  th i s  I  wou ld  l i ke  to  see the  

lega l  team p lus  the  invest iga tors .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Yes we had  p lanned a  meet ing  w i th  

them.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay,  a f te r  –  when we ad journ ,  I  

wou ld  l i ke  to  see the  lega l  team and  the  invest iga tor  o r  

invest iga to rs  tha t  dea l  w i th  Bosasa shor t l y  in  these 

chambers  he re .   Okay yes?  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    So  Cha i r  we a re  in  your  hands,  inso fa r  

as  the  a f f idav i t  o f  Mr  Groenewald .   I t  i s  mere ly  to  conf i rm 10 

the  ev idence w i th  th is  w i tness tha t  he  showed h im the  

p ic tu res  tha t  we took you th rough o f  ou ts ide  the  house and  

the  guardhouse and he a l so  dea ls  w i th  h is  research  a t  

Deeds Reg is t ry,  the  reg is t ra t ion  o f  the  house and I  am not  

cer ta in  whether  the  Cha i r  wou ld  want  h im to  g ive  v iva  vo ice  

ev idence or  whe ther  h i s  a f f idav i t  can be read in to  the  

record .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l ,  one,  i t  depends i f  there  i s  

someth ing ,  i f  depends i f  there  i s  someth ing ,  does  i t  dea l  

w i th  the  NATIS in fo rmat ion?  20 

ADV NOTSHE SC:    I t  does not  dea l  w i th  the  NATIS 

in fo rmat ion ,  bu t  the  NATIS in fo rmat ion  is  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l  h is  a f f idav i t  can be -   I  th ink  I  do  

remember ;  I  th ink  i t  w i l l  be  be t te r  tha t  he  shou ld  come but  I  

th ink  you sa id  he  is  no t  we l l  o r  someth ing?  
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ADV NOTSHE SC:    He is  no t  –  he  is  phys ica l l y  

ind isposed.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  once he is  we l l  le t ’s  ca l l  h im i t  won ’ t  

take  long.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    H is  ev idence won ’ t  take  long.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  ja ,  okay.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    And a lso ,  i t  w i l l  a lso  no t  rea l l y  he lp  bu t  

i t  w i l l  demonst ra te  a lso  the  confus ion  tha t  was near ly  

caused by  the  photograph,  because in  h is  photograph he  

took i t  a t  the  r igh t  ang le .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  okay.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    And then i t  w i l l  show what  we saw 

yesterday and what  the  ev idence  o f  the  w i tness bu t  i t  w i l l  

a lso  b r ing  the  photograph.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes okay.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Cha i r  fo r  now tha t  i s  a l l ,  and then 

tomorrow we had p lanned the  ev idence o f  one w i tness,  

there  were  two w i tnesses,  f i rs t  le t  me go back,  in i t ia l l y  the  

hear ing  was p lanned fo r  th ree  days bu t  we fe l t  tha t  the  

w i tnesses were  go ing  to  be  shor t  and we w i l l  pu t  them 20 

together.   So today we had p lanned Mr  Fro l i ck  and th is  

w i tness,  tomorrow we had p lanned another  w i tness and Mr  

Br ian  B lake fo r  the  t rave l  agents .   I t  seems as i f  we are  l e f t  

w i th  one . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes I  th ink  the  o ther  w i tness you can  
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ment ion ,  was Mr  G ingnana wasn ’ t  i t?  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Yes Mr  G ingnana and we are  unab le  to  

p roceed w i th  h im ,  we have ar ranged w i th  h im tha t  he  w i l l  

ge t  a  f resh  not ice  o f  the  next  hear ing .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  so  we are  le f t  w i th  Mr  B lake and  

inso fa r  as  Mr  B lake is  concerned,  I  aga in  spoke  to  the 

lega l  rep resenta t i ves  o f  Ms Mokonyane about  the  re ference  

then they are  no t ,  they  agree tha t  h is  ev idence can be l ed  10 

desp i te  the  re fe rences.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  bu t  o ther  peop le  who  may be 

imp l ica ted  in  Mr  B lake ’s  a f f idav i t  o r  ev idence have they  

been g iven 33 No t ices?  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    As  fa r  as  I  know they have been g iven  

but  when we mee t  you now in  chambers  I  w i l l  con f i rm tha t  

because what  I  d id  even on Fr iday I  sa id  we shou ld  go  

th rough a l l  those invo ices and make sure ,  and a lso  the  

s ta tement ,  and make su re  tha t  everyone ment ioned there  

has go t  a  33  so  tha t  today,  tomorrow when Mr  B lake is  20 

tes t i f y ing  peop le  are  no t  taken by  su rpr i se  to  hear  the i r  

names ment ioned when they have –  bu t  we w i l l  con f i rm 

wi th  you in  chambers .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  bu t  you see i f  no t ices  haven ’ t  been  

g iven then I  don ’ t  want  to  come here  on ly  to  ad journ  
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p roceed ings tomorrow.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Cha i rperson now we are  go ing  to  leave 

here  tha t  i s  you r  chambers  and we w i l l  be  cer ta in  whethe r  

they w i l l  be  coming or  . . .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  I  want  to  ad journ  even tomorrow’s  

proceed ings now i f  you don ’ t  –  i f  you  are  no t  ready 

because not ices  have not  been g iven and Wednesday.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Wel l  Wednesday Cha i r  the re  are  no  

hear ings.    Can Cha i r  jus t  bear  w i th  me fo r  one second.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay.  10 

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Cha i r  I  am adv ised by  my jun io r  tha t  

a l l  no t ices ,  3 .3  Not ices  have gone  out  inso far  as  Mr  Br ian  

B lake.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes bu t  go ing  ou t  i s  no t  enough,  has 14  

days lapsed?  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    No i t  has  no t  lapsed.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  then . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV NOTSHE SC:    I t  was a  shor t  no t ice .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Then i f  –  I  mean i f  you are  go ing  to  ca l l  

a  w i tness w i thou t  g iv ing  the  imp l ica ted  par t ies  14  days  20 

not ice  there  has go t  to  be  sound good reasons and I  don ’ t  

th ink  tha t  there  wou ld  be  any good reasons w i th  regard  to  

Mr  B lake.  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    Cha i r  I  can conf i rm we have not  even 

–  un l i ke  the  issue  o f  Ms Mokonyane,  the  w i tness,  where  we  



06 JULY 2020 – DAY 230 
 

Page 89 of 90 
 

ob ta ined consent  o f  the  o ther  s ide ,  w i th  Mr  B lake ’s  one we 

have not  ob ta ined consent  and we  are  unab le  to  so  . . .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay so  what  you need to  do  fo r  a l l  

the  w i tnesses who w i l l  be  coming check tha t  no t ices  have  

been issued on t ime,  check tha t  by  the  t ime the  w i tness  

comes a  per iod  o f  14  days w i l l  have lapsed and i f  you seek  

to  lead the  w i tness even though the  14  days has no t  lapsed  

you wou ld  need to  app ly  fo r  condonat ion ,  obv ious l y  there  

must  be  good cause.   The app l i ca t ion  fo r  condonat ion  I  

th ink  I  have sa id  tha t  in  cer ta in  c i rcumstances i t  doesn ’ t  10 

have to  be  substant ive ,  so  –  bu t  I  need to  be  to ld  what  the  

reasons are ,  bu t  as  fa r  as  poss ib le  the  idea shou ld  be  to  

make sure  tha t  we –  the  Commiss ion  o f f i ce  has the  14  days 

per iod .  

ADV NOTSHE SC:    I  unders tand.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And when the re  are  good reasons tha t ’s  

d i f fe ren t  to  lead the  w i tness be fore  the  exp i ry  o f  14  days 

then I  w i l l  l i s ten  to  what  the  reasons are  and then  take  i t  

f rom there ,  so  i t  i s  impor tan t  and don ’ t  re ly  comple te ly  on  

the  Secre tar ia t  about  the  send ing  o f  no t ice  so  l e t  them 20 

sa t is fy  you tha t  i t  has  been done,  you spec i fy  i f  i t  hasn ’ t  

been done,  i t  must  be  done by  a  cer ta in  da te  and jus t  

check w i th  them because o therw ise  you might  th ink  tha t  

we l l  I  asked them to  send i t  ou t  by  a  cer ta in  da te ,  I  am 

sure  they w i l l ,  bu t  you d iscover  one day befo re  the  hear ing  
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o f  tha t  w i tness tha t  ac tua l l y  i t  wasn ’ t  sent  ou t  on  t ime.  

 Okay,  a l r igh t ,  so  we w i l l  no t  s i t  tomorrow,  we w i l l  

no t  s i t  on  Wednesday fo r  the  pu rposes o f  the  med ia  and 

the  pub l i c ,  I  can  announce tha t  we  w i l l  s i t  on  Thursday and  

I  w i l l  hear  the  ev idence o f  Mr  Maxa tuga on Thursday.  

 We ad journ .  

REGISTRAR:   A l l  r i se .  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS TO 9  JULY 2020  
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